FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

gk | g ta 8 ]

Ohio Office of Budget
and Management =1

State of Ohio

Richard F. Celeste

Governor




- B

Report prepared by the Office of
Budget and Management, State
Accounting, Financial Reporting
Section:

Timothy . Murphy, C.PA.
Deputy Director

Jane A. Schmitz, C.P.A.
Financial Reporting Manager

Kimberly C. Blake

Rose A. Bowman, C.P.A.

Richard D. Dowell, C.P.A.

Mark C. Greathouse

Andrea E. Joffe, CPA.

Teresa . Walters

Special appreciation is given to all
fiscal and accounting personnel
throughout the State whose extra
efforts to contribute accurate, timely
financial data for their agencies made
this report possible.

COVER PHOTOGRAPH:

Courtesy of Lorain County Canvention
and Visitor's Bureau.




RicHARD F. CELESTE
GOVERNOR

L. Lee Walker
Director
Office of Budget
and Management

Timothy |. Murphy
Deputy Director
Division of
State Accounting

Prepared by Division of
State Accounting

COMPREHENSIVE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
ENDED JUNE 30, 1990




STATE OF OHIO

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Page
LLOtter OF TTAMSIIEAL ¢vvveenseneersssssssssssssssssssssmsesssssssssssssssssssmssmassstsssssssstasssssssssss st 5
Graphic Presentation of Revenues and Expenditures for All Governmental Funds ....cccocevinncnenee 12
State OF ONI0 OFFICIALS cvvveuesecrrsmmsssssserssssnstssssssssmassssssssssmusssssssessismissssssssssssas s s 13
State of Ohio Organization CRAIt .......ueeeesssssssssssssssessssssssmmmsssssssssssssss st 14
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUGIOr'S REPOTL coveresimsssssesssssssssssssssts s s s 15
General Purpose Financial SEALCTNENLS ....vrereersnsccsonsssssssssssssssnssasssssistssassassesasusissssasnsaesssses 17
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and ACCOUNt GIOUPS w.veverererescesesssnsnsnsasstsnsnsnsnsnseses 18
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund c..occcoveevssiemssemssscsmssamssenasecss 20
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - General, Special Revenue and
Dbt SEIVICE FUINAS covuerereesseessssessssssssessasssnssssssssassssssassssssstsassssssssssassssssssassss s st 22
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings/Fund
Balances - All Proprietary Fund Types and Pension Trust Fund.......cceeeneisncsinnenenens 24
Combined Statement of Cash Flows - All Proprietary Fund TYPeS ..cooucescusiesssssssmasssnsesssseasee 26
Notes to the FINancial STALEMENES ..uusssrerrusssssusesssissssssssssssssismmssssmissssssimm s s 28
Combining Financial Statements ANd SChEAUIES .....ooverevecreerisnesnesesinssssssnsessassasssaasssssanssases 69
Special Revenue Funds:
Special Revenue Funds DESCHIPLONS covevsrecssmenssssssssessessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssecsonsssnesss 70
Combining Balance SHEEL ......ccwwwssesmssmrssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssss st s 72
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ......cocosereeene 76
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (BUAGELATY BASIS) wvveesesssessssmremssmsmssssssassssssssssisssessmsssmsusssssssssssessmnsssessssss 80
Debt Service Funds:
Debt Service Funds DesCrPHOMS wuuuvweessssssessssssssesssssssmsssssssssssscssssssimmusmss s s 90
Combining Balance SHEEE w..ewwewwssssessssssmsssssssssssssssssssssmssssssasestssss sty e 92
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances .....ccocorennnns 96

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (Budgetary L TT 1) U Rt 100




Capital Projects Funds:

Capital Projects Funds DESCHPLONS ..........uuueeeemmmmrrvenneeesseneseeeoseeseesensoseosoeoooeoesoooeesosoeee 107

Combining BAlance SHELt .........cuwwuuiumsiirusmumssseeeemmsmimmssssanmsesssessssseosesssessssssssssssssesseesesssssssesse 108

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ................... 110
linterprise Funds:

Enterprise Funds DesCriPLions ..............uuuuucevueeeueerereesseneneeseeseeeeeeees oo eeeee oo oeoseo 113

Combining Balance SHEEt .............uuuuuuivvuuseeceesmnnsssssesnessssseseessesssseessess s ooe oo 114

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Eamnings.................... 116

Combining Statement of Cash FIOWS ...........uuceeeuummmnmsresssnnnnnsessmeeseessssssssssssessssosssseeeoseseoese 118
Internal Service Funds:

Internal Service FUnds DESCIIPHONS .......ucuvvvusmecreeeesnsssseseseessssseseessesssesessssesssessossessss oo 121

Combining Balance SHEEt ......uvvuuuuuuuennciveeeseeeeessessssssmsnnssseemesnssesssssssess oo seesssesesss 122

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Eamnings.................... 124

Combining Statement of Cash FIOWS ...........eceeermeunnsrsssmmnnseeeesessesssesssssssssssss oo ssssssss e 126
T'rust and Agency Funds:

Trust and Agency Funds DeSCHPHONS .........cureceevesmmmnsssrssnnsnnseessessesessessessssss s sesseee 129

Combining Balance SHEEt ..........uv.uuuuuuuuivveessesnessnsessssssnsnsessseeeessseesssssssesss oo oseseseosoesoeso . 130

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities .............ooovvvovoovvveeoooooooo 134
General Fixed Assets Account Group:

General Fixed Assets Account Group DeSCIPON ..veu.....vvveesecreeeeeresreeseess oo oo 137

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets bygSourcel ;... o TR T e N 138

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by FUNCHON «.........oeovvvvvoneooooooooooooo 139

Schedule of General Fixed Assets by FUNCEON ...vvvvvvvvveeeneeneieeeeeeessesseseeseossoeoeooooooooooosooon 140

STATISTICAL SECTION
Table 1 -- Revenue by Source - All Governmental Fund Typesh.... b oo o R 141
Table 2 -- Expenditures by Function - All Governmental Fund Typest.l... .25 SIS 142
Table 3 -- Ratio of Annual Debt Service for General and Special Bonded
Debt to Total Revenues and Expenditures - All Governmental Fund Types ........... 143

Table 4 -- Net General and Special Bonded Debt per Capita ... % ... L e et 144
Table 5 -- Schedule of Revenue Bond COVEIAGE ....uceeveiiieicerie s eesee s 145
Table 6 -- Personal Income - Ohio Compared to the United States ...........novvvvomnoooooo 147
Table 7 -- Personal Income by INAUSETY .....ccuuuummnrevruveenseeereeseseeeeseeeseoeeoeoeoooooooooooooooo 148

ible 8 -- Population by Age Group - Ohio Compared to the United States ...........cooovveenn. 149

I

Fable 9 -- Average Monthly Unemployment Rates - Ohio Compared to the United States ...... 150
Fable 10 -- List of Major Industrial Corporations that Maintain Headquarters in Ohio............... 151
Fable 11 -~ Sales Of Retail SEOTES ..uuuu.vvvuseereeuseseresnnneessenseeeeeseeeeeos oo oeoooeoosooooooeseooeoe 152
Fable 12 - Miscellaneous Statistics and Data..........uuee..oveeeeeeeeeeeeoeoeeoooeooooosooooooooooooooooo 153




[THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]




INTRODUCTORY
SYE G THIEOIN







S 4

State of Ohio - Office of Budget and Management
30 East Broad Street - Columbus, Ohio 432660411

November 16, 1990
To the Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly, and the Citizens of Ohio:

It is my privilege to issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the financial condition
of the State of Ohio for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1990. The report is prepared in conformance with
Generally Accepted Accountin g Principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accountin g Stan-
dards Board.

This report was prepared by the Ohio Office of Budget and Management pursuant to Section 126.21 of the
Ohio Revised Code, which requires that an official financial report of the State be issued annually. The
report includes General Purpose Financial Statements, which provide an overview of the State's financial
position and the results of financial operations by fund type.

The Office of Budget and Management is responsible for the accuracy of the data presented and the com-
pleteness and faimess of its Presentation, including all disclosures. To the best of our knowledge and belief,
ihe enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present f; airly
the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the State of Ohio.
All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the State's financial activities
have been included.

ihe State's General Purpose Financial Statements include all funds and account groups for which the State
exercises "oversight responsibility." We followed the criteria established in the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section

I'he CAFR includes the following;: introductory information; financial information that presents the Gen-
cral Purpose Financial Statements, combining financial statements, supporting schedules, and fund descrip-
tions; and a statistical section that presents financial, economic, and demographic data for the State.

FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

lhe data in the financial statements are presented in accordance with a fund classification system prescribed
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The purpose of this system is to improve the compa-
rability of the financial reports of different governmental units.

The system has three categories of funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each category is
divided into several "fund types."

Govemnmental fund types are those through which State functions are financed. There are four governmen-
tal fund types: General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds.




roprietary fund types are used to account for activities that are commercial in nature — similar to those
often found in the private sector. There are two proprietary fund types: enterprise and internal service
funds.

Fiduciary fund types include trust funds, which account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity, and
agency funds, which account for assets held by the State as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governments, and/or other funds.

The reporting format for our CAFR is significantly different from the way the State more typically presents
its finances on a budgetary basis. The most obvious difference is that the "General Fund" in the CAFR
includes more than just the State's General Revenue Fund. The General Fund also includes the Budget
Stabilization Fund and reimbursement-supported funds used for activities administered by State agencies
and departments for which special revenue or proprietary fund classifications were considered to be inap-
propnate.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT RESULTS

The General Purpose Financial Statements have been audited by the Office of Auditor of State, Thomas E.
Ferguson. The outcome of the audit conducted by the Auditor of State, in accordance with generally ac-
cepted auditing standards, was an unqualified auditor's report. Such an opinion indicates there was no limi-
tation on the scope of the auditor's examination and the financial statements were prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

The State's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure de-
signed to ensure that the State's assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with gen-
srally accepted accounting principles. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but
1ot absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:
(1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs

and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

The State's Central Accounting System (CAS) achieves budgetary control over the various accounts of the
State's funds. Ohio's bicameral legislature, the General Assembly, authorizes expenditures by appropriat-
ing funds in biennial and supplemental appropriation acts. The Office of Budget and Management uses
CAS to control subsequent departmental obli gation and expenditure activity to ensure that authorized
appropriations are not exceeded.

‘I'he State's budgetary financial statements are prepared on a modified cash basis of accounting. This means
{hat revenues are recognized when cash is received and expenditures are recognized when cash is paid.
Encumbrances, reservations of appropriation authority, as of June 30, the end of the State fiscal year, are
reflected as expenditures on the budgetary basis of accounting.




The State's GAAP financial statements for the governmental and expendable trust funds have been prepared
on a modified accrual basis of accounting. This means that revenues are recognized when measurable and
available; expenditures are recognized when goods or services are received or liabilities are incurred. The
proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. This means that
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Additional discussion of the budgetary and GAAP bases of accountin g is provided in NOTE 1 to the finan-
cial statements.

CAS maintains all budgetary-basis transactions and most GAAP-basis adjustments. In addition to the
information obtained from the CAS for financial reporting, selected financial information provided by the
State’s agencies and departments is compiled to complete the GAAP-basis financial statements.

Differences between the two bases of accounting (GAAP vs. budgetary) include: (1) entity differences —the
GAAP reporting entity may include organizations such as financing authorities and other component units
that are not included in the State's budget; (2) basis differences —the GAARP basis results in the reporting of
accruals while the budgetary basis results in the reporting of cash transactions; and (3) timing differences
—for example, GAAP recognizes expenditures for payables for goods and services received, whereas the
budgetary basis considers unliquidated encumbrances as expenditures. A reconciliation between the
GAAP-basis and budgetary-basis financial statements is presented in Note 3 to the financial statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

In Ohio, with the exception of certain component units of the State that have independent powers to man-
age and invest their funds, the Treasurer of State is responsible for investing the State's cash pool. During
fiscal year 1990, cash management and investment transactions made by the Treasurer of State's Office, in
accordance with the Uniform Depository Act, were limited to checking accounts and certificates of deposit
with qualified public depositories, U.S. government and agency obligations, and repurchase agreements.
For fiscal year 1990, investment earnings on the State's cash pool managed by the Treasurer of State, in-
cluding the portion dedicated to the Ohio Lottery Commission, totaled $329 million.

Quarterly, the Office of Budget and Management allocates the interest income earned on the undedicated
portion of the cash pool to the various funds designated by law to receive the earnings. The allocation is
calculated in accordance with a formula that is based on average daily cash balances invested during the
(quarter.

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS

The following schedule presents a summary of revenues, recorded on the modified accrual basis, for the
governmental fund types (General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1990, and the amount and percentage increases and decreases in relation to prior-year
revenues (amounts expressed in thousands).




Percentage

Increase/
Increase (Decrease)
FY 1990 Percent (Decrease) Since
Revenues Amount of Total from FY 1989 June 30, 1989
INCOME TAXES ..veverereerrrreenasensssssonsarennsnesnsnses $ 4,078,371 24.2% $ 175,363 4.5%
SaleS TAXES .vveereeceereirrrnsreessssssranneassessensisans 3,603,922 214 206,718 6.1
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes ............. 1,492,646 8.8 (31,989) (2.1)
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes .....ccceceveecaninanens 993,612 5.9 169,339 20.5
OhEr TAXES .veevvereecrerseesriesenssnsnssssssesssessasaese 706,350 42 (396) (.1)
Licenses, Permits and Fees .........coeeiieense 635,790 38 51,635 8.8
Sales, Services and Charges ........ccceecueee 76,985 5 9,373 13.9
Federal GOVernment ........cceveivuesiassisanennns 4,553,955 27.0 439,237 10.7
OFNEE ovevveeveeemersrssrereassessesssssssssnassssnsossasssanans 708,305 4.2 126,111 21.7
TOAl cevereereeeereinerreeresessanessinsrnsasassssessnsssnas $ 16,849,936 100.0% $ 1,145,391 7.3

The 20.5 percent increase in motor vehicle fuel tax revenue during fiscal year 1990 primarily resulted from
a hike in the tax rate; effective July 1, 1989, the rate increased from 14.8 cents to 18 cents a gallon.

Federal government revenue, which represents 27 percent of total governmental fund revenues, increased
10.7 percent over fiscal year 1989. The change is principally due to a significant increase in the Medicaid
Program, under which approximately 60 percent of eligible costs paid by the State are reimbursed by the
federal government.

Expenditures for governmental fund types, presented on the modified accrual basis, for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1990, and the amount and percentage increases and decreases in relation to prior-year expenditures
are shown below for the functions of general government (amounts expressed in thousands).

Percentage
Increase/
Increase (Decrease)
FY 1990 Percent (Decrease) Since
Expenditures Amount of Total from FY 1989 June 30, 1989
Current:
Primary_Secondary and
Other EQUCAliON .....ccovviimerierneesecsussansinsas $ 3,972,048 22.5% $ 194,368 5.2%
Higher EQUCAtON ..ovu.ccvvecriiieisisencenciiaes 1,502,610 8.5 144,832 10.7
“1ublic Assistance and Medicaid.........e..... 4,895,836 27.7 704,175 16.8
Health and Human Services ........c.covenee 1,609,917 9.1 142,365 9.7
Justice and Public Protection ........c..cccce 805,899 4.6 62,942 8.5
Environmental Protection and
Natural RESOUICES ......cccemrrmreiseressniieanens 212,368 1.2 17,175 8.8
TranspOrtalion .......ccoeeeesisiimsrsescacscacaes 1,129,980 6.4 50,305 4.7
General Government ......cccveeevenecieiniians 294,985 1.7 17,863 6.5
Community and Economic
Development .......cocveereninseisuraansaencssaes 337,975 1.9 12,395 38
Intergovernmental .......c.cooiennrescecsnsiisnens 1,834,230 10.4 112,309 6.5
Capital QUHAY ....ccoriencercnriermnrsnsnansenieciseee 435,462 24 (58,843) (11.9)
DEbt SEIVICE ....cvvvververcesrirtensresnsnssessnsisaeans 635,298 3.6 13,469 22

j o1 F: | OOV $ 17,666,608 100.0% $ 1,413,355 8.7

Public assistance and Medicaid expenditures increased by $704.2 million or 16.8 percent. Increases in the
Medicaid Program comprise the largest portion of the public assistance and Medicaid expenditure increase.

An additional analysis of revenues and expenditures for all governmental funds reported for fiscal year
1990 is shown in the graphic presentation that follows this letter.

GENERAL FUND

Many State programs are accounted for in the General Fund. The General Fund reported an unreserved/
undesignated tund balance of $540.8 million, as of June 30, 1990, compared to $566.3 million, as of




June 30, 1989, a 4.5 percent decrease. In fiscal year 1991, however, the vast mayjority of the General Fund's
unreserved/undesignated fund balance has been appropriated.

PROPRIETARY AND FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The State's enterprise funds reported a retained earnings deficit of $2.05 billion, as of June 30, 1990, as
compared to $2.6 billion, as of June 30, 1989, a 21.2 percent decrease. Operating revenues for the enter-
prise funds increased to $4.4 billion in fiscal year 1990 from $3.9 billion in fiscal year 1989; operating ex-
pensces decreased to $3.1 billion in fiscal year 1990 from $3.2 billion in fiscal year 1989.

he State's internal service funds reported retained earnings of $78.1 million, as of June 30, 1990, as com-
pared to $61.6 million, as of June 30, 1989, (restated after the effects of the reclassification and prior period
wuljustment explained in Note 2 to the financial statements), a 26.8 percent increase. Operating revenues for
the internal service funds increased to $171 million in fiscal year 1990 from $167 million in fiscal year
[989; operating expenses also increased to $158.6 million in fiscal year 1990 from $147.9 million in fiscal
year 1989. During fiscal year 1990, a one-time operating transfer from the General Fund in the amount of

$10.6 million, was reported for the Water Pollution Control Loan Internal Service Fund.

The fund balance of the expendable trust fund increased by 22.6 percent to $1.02 billion, as of June 30,
1990, from $832 million, as of June 30, 1989. Revenues for the expendable trust fund decreased by 2.9 per-
cent to $851.6 million in fiscal year 1990 from $877.4 million in fiscal year 1989 while expenditures in-
creased 25 percent to $660.2 million in fiscal year 1990 from $528.0 million in fiscal year 1989.

The fund balance of the pension trust fund was $195.5 million, as of June 30, 1990, as compared to $173.6
mitlion, as of June 30, 1989, a 12.6 percent increase. Operating revenues for the pension trust fund in-
creased to $29.9 million in fiscal year 1990 from $29.3 million in fiscal year 1989; operating expenses
increased to $8.0 million in fiscal year 1990 from $6.5 million in fiscal year 1989.

"EBT ADMINISTRATION

Ohio's credit ratings by both Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (Moody's) and Standard & Poor's Corporation
(S&P) for certain State general obligation bonds are Aa and AA, respectively, except that S&P rates the
State's Highway Obligations AAA. Obligations issued by the Ohio Building Authority (OBA) and the Ohio
Public Facilities Commission (OPFC) are rated A by Moody's and A+ by S&P.

As of June 30, 1990, the State reported a total of $4.1 billion in outstanding debt issues in its General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Percentage
Outstanding Balance, Increase/ (Decrease)
as of June 30, 1990 Since June 30, 1989
General Obligation Bonds ..................oooovonn. $ 707,175 (2.20 )%
Revenue Bonds .........c.coueeueeueeeeeonrne 149,990 (8.82)
Special Obligation Bonds ................coveeen....... 3,266,865 (.61)
TO1AL ...fsutesssseeeesssarrmneessessensesmmnecmsssnossnfosons $ 4,124,030 (1.21)

Ohio also reported $16.9 million in special obligation bond anticipation notes in the capital projects funds,
representing a 100 percent increase since June 30, 1989, and $56.2 million in revenue bonds outstanding
(net of unamortized discounts of $3.5 million). as of June 30. 1990, for the proprietary funds, representing
a 1.5 percent increase since June 30, 1989.



RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

State employees may be eligible to participate in the Public Employees Retirement System, the State Teach-
ers Retirement System, or the State Highway Patrol Retirement System. Further information on the State's
participation in the retirement systems can be found in Note 9 to the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As discussed in Note 1 N. to the financial statements, the State is self-insured for claims arising from health
care, workers' compensation, vehicle liability, public fidelity blanket bonds, property losses, and tort liabil-

ity.
ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

National economic growth over the past seven years has been generally favorable while certain regional
economies have experienced various degrees of slower economic growth. The U.S. economy is now
experiencing a different phase of the business cycle, which is characterized by much slower growth with
relatively high rates of inflation. For the past five quarters, the economy has been growing at an annual rate
of less than two percent and is close to a recessionary level, as this report is published. Economic growth
is expected to remain at this slow rate through the first half of 1991; however, the economy is expected to
recover expanding in the 1.5 to 2.5 percent range through 1992. For positive economic growth, the Persian
Gulf crisis and the federal budget and merchandise trade deficit issues must be resolved.

National economic conditions will have an impact on Ohio's economic growth and fiscal condition. It is
expected that economic growth in Ohio will be more moderate than the nation as a whole. Ohio's past
cconomic growth has lagged behind the national economy, and recessions have hit Ohio much harder. This
was due mainly to Ohio's dependence upon manufacturing. In recent years, however, employment growth
in Ohio has been concentrated largely in the service and nonmanufacturing sectors. Since 1983, Ohio's
heavy industry and manufacturing concerns have revitalized plant and equipment, which have contributed
to improvements in productivity, production capacity, and competitiveness. These developments have
provided Ohio with a more diversified and solid economic base. The unemployment rate has dropped from
a high of 13.8 percent in 1983 to approximately 5.7 percent in 1990.

JOBS AND BUSINESS IN OHIO

Some recent highlights on jobs and business in Ohio include the following:

«  The Ohio Department of Development's International Trade Division recently opened offices in
Toronto and Hong Kong to assist Ohio companies in developing trade opportunities in Canada and
China, respectively.

« More Ohioans were employed in August 1989— 5.26 million people—than in any other time in the
State's history.

. Ohio is the number one producer of trucks in the nation and a national leader in auto-related parts.

» In the past year, construction on Ford-Nissan's $1 billion mini-van expansion at Avon Lake began.




An estimated 3,000 new jobs tfor Ohioans have been created through recent company relocaticns or
expansions in the Buckeye State, according to the Chio Department of Development. Gould Inc.,
Burlington Air Express, Merillat Industries, Inc., Detroit Diesel. Leaseway Transportation. Fannie
Farmer Candy Shops [nc., and Associated Products are among such companies relocating to or
cxpanding operations in Ohio. :

*  Armco Steel Co. is building its second electrogalvanizing line in Middletown. The $116 miltion
project will more than double the firn's capacity when completed in 1991,

OTHER FISCAL YEAR 1990 HIGHLIGHTS

+ Amended House Bill 453, effective November 1989, created the Ohio Commission on Dispute
Resolution and Conflict Management. The 12-member body provides and encourages mediation
procedures and educational programs on dispute and conflict resolution. in both the domestic and
international context.

* The newly established Ohio Tuition Trust Authority launched its tuition credits program, which
guarantees participants future tuition costs at State-assisted higher education institutions.

»  Legislation passed fate in fiscal year 1990 created the Women's Policy and Research Commission
and the Women's Policy and Research Center to promote the advancement of women and remove
barriers to women's equality.

- The Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services officially began operations, which
primarily encompass the development and administration of statewide addiction treatment pro-
grams.

* The State's Central Accounting System was recognized in 1990 for outstanding achievement in the
licld of automation by the National Association of State [nformation Resource Executives.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

fnan efTort to enhance the usefulness of supplementary rinancial data presented in the State's CAFR, we
have included a mail-in questionnaire at the end of this report. We hope the questionnaire will provide our
users with the opportunity to voice their comments and suggestions on the State's CAFR. and possibly, on
vhat other types of data they would prefer to see incorporated in future reports. ‘We also offer additional
financial information on the State of Ohio, including 1989 and 1990 comparative data, on diskette. [nfor-
iation on how to order this material is contained on the questionnaire.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
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dedicated erforts made this report possible.
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THOMAS E. FERGUSON

AUDITOR OF STATE
CoLuMmBus, OHIO 43218

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Richard F. Celeste, Governor
State of Ohio
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the State of Ohio, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 1990, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the respon-
sibility of the State's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the following component units and funds:
the Okio Air Quality Development Authority, the Ohio Water Development Authority, the Ohio Housing
Finance Agency, the Economic Development Financing Division, the Minority Development Finance
(Commission, the Ohio Public Facilities Commission, the Ohio Turnpike Commission, the Ohio Building
Authority, the State Parking Commission, the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation and Industrial
Commission of Ohio and the State Highway Patrol Retirement System, which statements reflect the follow-
ing percent of total assets or liabilities and revenues of the indicated fund type and account groups:

Percent of Total Percent of Total
Assets/(Liabilities) Revenues
Special Revenue fund type 16% 3%
Debt Service fund type 80% 29%
Capital Projects fund type 40% 38%
Enterprise fund type 90% 53%
Internal Service fund type 39% 14%
Trust and Agency fund type 6% -
General Fixed Assets account group 17% -
General Long-Term Obligations account group (68% ) -

The financial statements of these component units and funds were audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts of these component units and
funds included in the fund types and account groups comprising the general purpose financial statements is
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
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The Honorable Richard F. Celeste, Governor

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting prin-
ciples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial state-
ment presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a rcasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial statements
referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of
Ohio at June 30, 1990, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its enterprise and internal serv-
ice fund types for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial
statements of the State of Ohio. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
our audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material
respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not examine the data included in the statistical section of this report and, therefore, express no
opinion thereon.

Auditor of State

November 9, 1990
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE
REVENUES:
Income Taxes . . . . o v v i i i e e e $§ 3618929 $ 459,442  § —
SalesS TAXOS . « o v v i e e e e e e e 3,418,135 185,787 =
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . ............. 1,409,040 83,606 )
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . . ... .. ...« i 957,940 35,672
Unemployment Taxes . . . . . . . ..o = —_ —
Other TAXBS . . v v v v e e e e e et e e 585,296 67,157 53,897
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . .. .. ... ......... 68,541 567,060 189
Sales, Services and Charges . . . .. .. ... ... ... 21,484 55,501 —
Federal Government. . . . .. ... .. ...., I A ol 2,299,581 2,253,926 448
Oher o . TP il = o TS W eTelale o o s R s 272,609 331,713 53,598
TOTAL REVENUES . . . . . . o o i i it ie i oo 11,693,615 4,962,132 143,804
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . .. ........ 2,919,502 1,052,546 =
Higher Education. . . . . . .. ... ... 1,429,520 73,090 —
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . . . . ... ..... ol o 4,506,917 " 388,919 e
Health and Human Services . . . . . . . . ..« oo 711,591 898,326 o
Justice and Public Protection . . ... .. ... ... ..., 591,485 214,414 —_
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . .. . .. 97,796 114,572 &
Traneportalion. . . . . . . . . 32,087 1,059,325 =
General Government. . . . . .« ..o e 214,840 80,145 ==
Community and Economic Development . . . . .. .. ... .. 102,754 235,221 ==
INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . . . . . e e e 622,351 1,211,879 —_
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . o o o e e e e e 21,989 16,860 =
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . . e i e i e e § o o 631,911
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . .. . . . . . .. ... ... .. X 11,250,832 5,345,297 631,911
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . it i oo . 442,783 (383,165) (488,107)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds . . . . . . . . . .. ... S I . _— _ —_
Refunding Bond Proceeds a% ; . — - 147.685
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents ..... . —— - (147,685)
Operating Transfers-in. . . . . P w6 WERE w - i e 94,113 1,200,447 490,586
Operating Transfers-out . . . L . (508,054) (632,978) (2,226)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) P . - (413,941) 567,469 488,360
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES . . . . . . . . i e it i . 28,842 184.304 253
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (as restated) . . . . . . - S5 M. - 1.124.614 1.278,956 612,012
INCREASE FOR CHANGES IN INVENTORIES . . . . . . . .. .. 1.324 3.637 -
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30. $ 1,154,780 S 1.466,897 $ 612.265

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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FIDUCIARY
_FUND TYPE

- 5 8

T0TAL
APITAL EXPENDABLE (MEMORANDUM
PROJECTS TRUST ONLY)
3 — 3 = 5 4,078,371
= — 3,603,922
<o == 1,192,046
— = 293.612
- 785,793 785,793
== == 706,350
i = 635,790
— == 76.985
== == 4,553,955
i 50,385 ‘5 84¢ R 774,153
50,385 ___ 351,641 17,701,577
L = 3.972,048
o = 1.502.610
=7 == 4,895,836
S 30,164 2.270,081
= S 305,899
== = 212,368
.3.568 = 1,129,980
== = 294,985
= 337975
== —_ 1,834.230
JU6,613 — 435,462
3,387 = 635 298
118,568 260,161 __ 18,326,772
{388,183) 191,477 (625,195)
273,771 = 273,771
= = 147 685
=) = (147,685)
52,844 e 1.837,990
(46) - . _(1143.304)
. .326569 S 968,457
(61,.614) 191,477 43,262
75816 131,972 4,423 370
- 1061

3 514.202 3 1,023.449 3 4771.593




STATE OF OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES:

Income Taxes

Sales Taxes

Other Taxes

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:

CURRENT:

Corporate and Public Utility Taxes
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes

Licenses, Permits and Fees
Sales, Services and Charges
Federal Government

Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . ... .. ...

Higher Education
Public Assistance and Medicaid
Health and Human Services
Justice and Public Protection

Environmental Protection and Natural Resources. . . . . .

Transportation
General Government
Community and Economic Development
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
CAPITAL OUTLAY

DEBT SERVICE

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond Proceeds
Operating Transfers-in
Operating Transfers-out
Encumbrance Reversions

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) . . . . . . ..

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES

(DEFICITS), JULY 1 . . .
Increase in Designated for Budget Stabilization

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES

(DEFICITS), JUNE 30
Designated for Budget Stabilization,
Designated for Capital Reserve, June 30

June 30

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS),

JUNE 30 . .

GENERAL FUND

VARIANCE

FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 3669600 § 3660231 § (9.369)
3,393,500 3,403,133 9,633
1,427,000 1,397,563 (29.437)
595,500 587,234 (8.266)
79,754 75,051 (4,703)
40,081 41,453 1,372
2,225,286 2,206,099 (19,187)
476,864 483,715 6,851
11,907,585 11,854,479 (53,106)
2,999,845 2,971,453 28,392
1,430,123 1,429,918 205
4,435,862 4,406,780 29,082
764,335 751,972 12,363
623,108 609,938 13,170
132,776 128,989 3,787
39,331 39,312 19
400,063 375,872 24,191
110,834 108,554 2,280
633,322 622,336 10,986
36,728 22,541 14,187
539,699 468,032 71,667
12,146,026 11,935,697 210,329
(238,441) (81,218) 157,223
86,627 87,550 923
(20,295) (24,889) (4.594)
— 24,259 24,259
66,332 86,920 20,588
(172,109) 5,702 177,811

516.368 516,368 —

(24,322) (24,322) —
319.937 497,748 177,811

364,363 364,363 —

22217 22217 —

$ 706,517 $ 884,328 § 177,811

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

VARIANCE

VARIANCE

FAVORABLE FAVORABLE

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 464,633 $ 464,633 $ = $ > $ — $ =
185,775 185,775 — = = ==
83274 83,274 == = = —
930,222 930,222 = 40,712 40,712 o
57,484 57,484 = 62,208 62,208 o
586,630 586,630 — 189 189 ]
14,883 14,883 = — == =
2,342,394 2,342,394 — = — =
399,049 399,049 — 78,243 78,243 =
5,064,344 5,064,344 e 181,352 181,352 =
1,121,618 1,114,305 7,313 = = T
16,986 15,515 1,471 '—' =3 e==
598,574 547,323 51,251 = = —
945,752 861,382 84,370 — = =
265,087 238,032 27,055 = = eSS
136,619 118,754 17,865 = = —
1,484,603 1,224,378 260,225 => = —
112,002 95,811 16,191 — = ==
317,900 267,597 50,303 = =3 o=
1,337,593 1,313,315 24,278 — = ==
94,922 22,835 62,087 — = &=

10,000 5,000 5,000 202,106 178,963 23,143

6,431,656 5,824,247 607,409 202,106 178,963 23,143

(1,367,312) (759,903) 607,409 (20,754) 2,389 23,143
= == _— 229 229 =
1,293,237 1,293,237 — e— == =
(662,195) (662,195) = = — —
109,529 109,529 = — —
740,571 740,571 = 229 229 —

§  (626,741) (19,332) § 607,409 § (20,525) 2618 § 23,143

(64,245) 110,336
112,954

(83,577)

$ 83,577,

$ 112,954



STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

(N RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND PENSION TRUST FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(anounts expressed in thousands)

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
INTERNAL PENSION
ENTERPRISE SERVICE TRUST
CPERATING REVENUES:
Chaiges for Sales and Services. . . . ... ........... $§ 1969883 § 167,410 $ =
Premium and Assessment Income . . .. .. .......... 1,700,783 = —
Investment INCOME. . . . . . . -« « i v i i i v e 692,319 204 15,348
Employer Contributions . . . . . ... ... ......... ... —_ —_ 10,504
Employee Contributions . . . . . . . . ... ... —3 = 3917
(0]1-70 oo s s 8 360 05 blodo & BEARE B MY 55 o O ENE 26,903 3,733 179
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. . . . . . .. . . . . . ..... 4,389,888 171,347 29,948
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services. . . . .. ............ ) 217,061 90,313 —
Administration. . . . . . . ... e e 250,053 47,432 440
Prizes and Claims . . . . . . . . .« e 827,360 = =
Benefit Payments and Refunds . . . ... . ........... 1,525,498 — 7,601
Depreciation. . . . . . . .. ..o . 14,997 10,5682 —_
(017278 oo 3B b & o BTG o ald bt . o e s AR 270,537 10,228 =
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . . . . . . . . .. . ... . ... 3,105,506 158,555 8,041
OPERATING INCOME . . . . . . . . . .. v 1,284,382 12,792 21,907
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income. . . . . . . .. 448 3,760 i
lilerest ExpenSe . . . . . ... oo (24) (8,939) =
Other o W05 78 S 1 T nedl B TR B b it 5 5 O (122) (1,773) c—
JOTAL NONOPERATING HEVENUES (EXPENSES). . . . . . .. 302 (6,952) —
INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS . . . . . ... ... .. 1,284,684 5,840 21,907
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Ttansfers-infout) . . . . .. .. ... .......... (709,299} 10,702 i
MET INCOME . . ... . . R R 575,385 16,542 21,907
HETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS)/
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (as restated) . . . . . .. ... ... (2,629,221) 61,591 173,564
FIETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS)/
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 .. . ... ........ $ (2,053,836) $ 78,133 % 195,471

1ae nores o ihe financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOTAL
(MEMORANDUM
ONLY)

$ 2137293
1,700,783
707.871

10,504

3917

30,815

4,591,183

307,374
297,925
827.360
1,633,099
25,579
280,765

3,272,102
1,319,081

4,208
(8,963)

(1,895)
(6,650)

1,312,431

(698,597)
613,834

(2,394,066)

$§ (1,780,232)
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S5TATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 10, 1990
VOTE1 SUMMARY QOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Ohio present the financial position of the various
fund types and account groups, the results of operations of the various fund types, and the cash flows of the
proprietary funds . The financial statements are presented, as of June 30, 1990, and for the year then ended,
and have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles, which are primarily set forth in the
GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (GASB Codifica-
tion). The State's significant accounting policies are described below.

A. Fipancial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the State includes all funds, account groups, elected offices, departments,
and agencies of the State, as well as bureaus, boards, commissions, and authorities over which the State's
executive, legislative, or judicial branches exercise oversight responsibility. Oversight responsibility is
defined in GASB Codification Section 2100 and includes the following considerations: financial interde-
pendency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence
operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. Also considered are the scope of an vrganization's public
service and special financing relationships.

Based on the application of the GASB Codification criteria, the following additional organizations meet the
oversight criteria and are also included in the accompanying financial statements:

Ohio Public Facilities Commission State Highway Patrol Retirement System (SHPRS)
Ohio Building Authority Ohio Turmpike Commission

State Parking Commission Ohio Student Loan Commission

Ohio Housing Finance Agency Ohio Lottery Comnission

Ohio Air Quality Development Authority Ohio Tuition Trust Authority

Ohio Water Development Authority

The following organizations have been determined not to be part of the reporting entity after applying the
manifestations of oversight responsibility criteria of GASB Codification Section 2100, and therefore, have
been excluded from the accompanying financial statements:

Public Employces Retirement System (PERS)

School Employees Retirement System (SERS)

State Feachers Retirement System (STRS)

Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund (PFDPF)
Ohio Public Employces Deferred Compensation Board (PEDCB)
VU State-assisted universities and colleges

the PERS, SERS, STRS, PFDPF, and PEDCB are not included in the reporting entity because the major-
ity of the boards are not authoritatively appointed but rather are elected by plan members and the boards
Jesignate management; exercise autonomy over fiscal, investment, and personnel matters; aud are respon-
sible for financing deficits. Therefore, the retirement systems’ assets, other than those of the SHPRS, wre
not reported in the State's financial statements.



> TATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS __JUNE 30, 1990

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNIING POLICIES (Continued)

The State-assisted universities and colleges are not included in the reporting entity because their trustees are
not authoritatively appointed, and they designate management; exercise autonomy over fiscal. personnel,
and institutional matters; are tesponsible for tinanciug deficits; and generally can issue bonds secured by
student receipts.

State employees' participation in the PEDCB is reported in an agency fund, as described in MOTE 17,

B. Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

The State of Ohio uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and results of its opera-
tions. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities.

A tund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. An account group is a finan-
cial reporting entity designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded
in the funds because they do not directly atfect expendable available financial resources. Funds are classi-
fied into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into
separate "fund types."

A description of each fund type and account group follows.

l. Governmental Fund Types

(eneral — The General Fund accounts for current financial resources traditionally associated with govern-
ment, which are not required legally or by sound financial management practices to be accounted for in an-
other fund.

Special Revenue — The special revenue funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for designated purposes. The general adininistrative activities of the Ohio Turnpike Commis-
sion, Ohio Water Development Authority, and Ohio Air Quality Development Authority are included in
the special revenue funds for their tiscal years ended December 31, 1989,

Debt Service — The debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of
general long-term debt principal and interest. The debt service activities of the Ohio Turnpike Commission
are included in the debt service funds for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1989.

Capital Projects — The capital projects funds account for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities and for major repairs and replacements other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds. The capital projects activities of the Ohio Turnpike Commission are included in the capital projects
funds for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1989.




STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1990

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( Continued)

2. Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise — The enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner simi-
lar to private business enterprises — where the State's intent is that the cost of providing goods or services
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or
where the State has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability pur-
poses. The Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation and the State Parking Commission are included in the
enterprise funds for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1989.

Intemal Service — The internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by a
State department or agency to other State agencies and to other government units, on a cost-reimbursement
basis. The Water Pollution Control Loan Program of the Ohio Water Development Authority is included
in the internal service funds for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1989.

3. Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust fun for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity. Trust funds included in the State's

eneral ~urpose financial stater ‘ents are expendable and pension trust. Agency funds account for assets

the State ac nt fi ividuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds.

e State ;. nt System is included as a pension trust fund for its fiscal year ended
Decem’

4. Aol

eral Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired or
eneral governmental purposes. These include all fixed assets except

Ui y and trust funds.

Geo il Long-Tem The General Long-Term Obligations Account Group accounts for the
State itured general ' ligauon bonds and other long-term obligations not required to be accounted for
in the prop d pension trust funds.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

Governmental and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. Under this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are
presented on the balance sheet; increases (i.e., revenue and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., ex-
penditures and other financing uses) in net current assets are presented in these funds’ operating statements.




STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1990

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for using a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operations of these funds
are presented on the balance sheet; fund equity (i.e., net assets) is segregated on the balance sheet into two
components, contributed capital and retained earnings/fund balance. Increases (e.g., revenues) and de-
creases (e.g., expenses) in net assets are presented in these funds' operating statements.

The modified accrual basis of accounting has been applied to all governmental, expendable trust, and
agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible
to accrual, that is, when they become both measurable and available. "Measurable" means the amount of
the transaction can be determined, and "available" means the amount is collectible within the current period
or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The State considers revenues
as available, if they are collected within 60 days after year end.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liabilities are incurred. Principal and interest on general
long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the
debt service funds for payments to be made in the subsequent fiscal year.

Significant revenue sources susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis of accounting
follow:

Sales and use taxes

Personal income taxes

Motor vehicle fuel taxes
Charges for goods and services

Licenses, permits, fees, and certain other miscellaneous revenues are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. The "Other" revenue account is comprised of re-
funds, reimbursements, recoveries, investment earnings, and other miscellaneous income. In the capital
projects funds, "Other" revenue primarily includes investment earnings.

Deferred revenue, as reported on the State's combined balance sheet, represents resources received before
the State has a legal claim to them, such as the receipt of federal grant monies prior to the incurrence of
qualifying expenditures. When the State has a legal claim to the resources, the revenue is recognized.

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied to proprietary and pension trust funds. Under this method,
revenues are recorded when eamned, and expenses are recorded when incurred.

D. Budgetary Process

As required by the Ohio Revised Code, the Governor submits biennial operating and capital budgets to the
General Assembly. The particular budget, which includes those funds of the State subject to appropriation
pursuant to State law, is composed of all proposed expenditures for the State and of estimated revenues and
borrowings for a biennium.
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STATE OfF CHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 10, 1990

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIIES (Continued)

The General Assembly enacts the budget through passage of specific departmental line-iter appropriations
by program or major object of expenditure, the legal level of budgetary control. The governor may veto
any itera in an appropriation bill, subject (o legislative override.

Biennially, the Ohio General Assembly approves operating and capital appropriations. Operating appro-
priations are provided in annual amounts while capital appropriations are provided in two-year amounts.
Because capital project funds’ appropriations are not made on an annual basis, budgetary basis financial
statements for these funds are not presented.

Transfers of appropriations between years of a hiennium and budget revisiouns during a year, reflecting
program changes or intradepartmental transfers of an administrative nature, may be effected with certain
executive and legislative branch approval. Ouly the General Assembly, however, may transfer or author-
ize the conditions under which appropriations may be transferred between departments.

All governmental funds are budgeted except the following activities within the fund types:

Special Revenue Fund: Capital Projects Fund:

Ohio Turnpike Commission Ohio Turnpike Commission

Ohio Building Authority

Debt Service Fund:

Economic Development Bond Service

Ohio Turnpike Commission Bond Service

Ohio Public Facilities Commission

Ohio Building Authority

Salt Fork Bond Retirement

Enterprise Bond Retirement

For budgeted funds, the State's Central Accounting System controls expenditures at the departmental level
by line-item established in appropriation acts, so at no time can expenditures exceed appropriations, and
financial-related legal compliance is assured. A modified cash basis of accounting is used for budgetary
purposes. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
expenditures are recorded as a reserve of the applicable appropriations, is employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the State's accounting system. Encumbrances outstanding in the General,
special revenue, and capital projects funds at fiscal year end are reported as reservations of fund balance for
expenditure in subsequent years. Operating encumbrances are generally canceled five months after fiscal
year end while capital encumbrances are automatically reappropriated. Unencumbered appropriations lapse
At the end of the biennium, for which they were appropriated. More comprehensive accounting of activity
on the budgetary basis is provided in the separately published annual Qhio Budgetary Financial Report,
which is available upen reguest, and the "Detailed Appropriation Suminary by Agency,” which is available
for public mspection.

[n the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —Budget and Ac-
tual (Budgetary Basis), budgeted revenues for the General Fund represent periodically updated revenue
budgets. For other budgeted funds, the original budgeted revenues, as submitted by the Governor, do not
represent actual forecasts of revenues and are not amended to coincide with iy legislative changes to the



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . JUNE 30, 1990
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PULICIES (Continued)

original expendirture budget. Accordingly, budgered revenues and other financing sources ad uses for
budgeted funds other than the General Fund are reported at actual amounts, since the State does not have
updated, budgeied revenue and other financing sources and uses amounts for use in the accompanying
budgetary basis financial statements.

None of the State's trust funds are legally required to adopt a budget. For budgeted proprietary funds, the
State is not legally required to report budgetary dara and comparisons for such funds.

Because the State budgets on u maodified cash basis of accounting, which differs from GAAP, 4 reconcili-
ation of the differences between the GA AP-basis and the budgetary-basis of reporting is presented in
NOTE 3.

K. Cash Equity with Treasurer/Cash with Custodian

Cash equity with Treasurer is carried at cost, which approximates market. All cash deposited with the
l'reasurer of State to the credit of appropriated tunds, includinyg the cash float, consists of pooled invest-
ments primarily composed of demand deposits, short-term securities, and other investiments. Cash with
custodian is comprised of amounts on deposit with financial institutions. Cash equity with Treasurer,
including the portion reported under "Restricted Assets," and cash with custodian are considered to be cash
equivalents for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.

F. Sureties

Sureties include various assets placed by their owncrs in safekeeping with the Treasurer of State, as re-
quired by applicable statutes.

G. Investments

Investments include long-tenn investments that may b restricred by law or uther legal instruments. (nvest-
ments are carried at cost or amortized cost (which does not exceed market) except those of the Bureau of
Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund and Deferred Compensation Agency Fund, which are reported at
market. No investments are considered to be cash equivalents for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.

tl. Inventories

For governmentai funds, the costs of inventories acquired are recorded as cxpenditures when purchased,
cxcept those of the Employment Services and Ohio Turnpike Commission special revenue funds, which are
reported as expenditures when consumed. At year end, physical counts are taken of si gnificant inventories
for the governmental fund types and are generally reported on the balance sheet ar wei ghted-average cost.
Proprietary fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, principally on a first-in, first-
out consumption method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1990

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

I. Restricted Assets

Assets restricted for the payment of severance pay to eligible employees covered under the Ohio Turnpike
Commission's Employee Severance Anticipation Compensation Plan are reported in the special revenue
funds.

Assets restricted for payment of deferred prize awards (Ohio Lotto) are reported for the Ohio Lottery
Commission in the enterprise funds.

Assets held by a trustee in connection with the State's certificate of participation financing arrangements are
classified in the internal service funds as restricted assets, since their use is limited by applicable leases and
trust agreements (See NOTE 14).

Additionally, covenants for the Ohio Building Authority's bonds require its pledged receipts also be held
and invested in a reserve account placed with a trustee financial institution. These restricted assets are
reported in the internal service funds.

J. Fixed Assets

General Fixed Assets — General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct
them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and
the related assets are reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. All purchased fixed assets are
valued at cost where historical records are available and at estimated historical cost where no historical
records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value at acquisition date. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend an asset's
useful life are not capitalized. The cost of major improvements is capitalized.

Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets consisting of among other assets, roads, bridges, curbs
and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems are not capitalized, since these
assets are immovable and of value only to the government.

Assets in the General Fixed Assets Account Group are not depreciated.

Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Fixed Assets — Fixed assets are stated at cost or, for donated assets, at fair
market value at acquisition date. Fixed assets, excluding land, are depreciated on the straight-line method
over estimated service lives. Material interest is capitalized on proprietary fund fixed assets acquired
through the issuance of debt.

K. Long-Term Obligations

A long-term obligation is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due. Only that portion ex-
pected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a liability of a govern-
mental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. Included among these liabilities are the noncurrent portions of liabilities resulting from
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

debt issuances, compensated absences, judgments, contingencies, leases, and workers' compensation bene-
fits. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in
those funds.

As discussed in NOTES 11 and 12, bonds issued by the Ohio Building Authority (OBA) to finance the
construction of State-related projects are reported as special obligation bonds in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group while OBA bonds issued to finance the construction of facilities leased to local
government are reported as revenue bonds in the internal service funds.

L. Compensated Absences

State employees earn vacation leave, sick leave, and personal leave at various rates within limits specified
under collective bargaining agreements or under law. Such leave is liquidated in cash, under certain restric-
tions, either annually in December, or at the time of termination from State employment. For governmen-
tal funds, the noncurrent portion of the liability for compensated absences is reported in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group. For proprietary fund types, the liability for compensated absences is
reported as a current accrued liability.

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 43, Accounting for
Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulated rights to receive sick pay
benefits. However, a liability is recognized for that portion of accumulated sick leave benefits that is esti-
mated to be taken as "terminal leave" prior to retirement.

M. Reservations/Designations of Fund Equity
Reservations

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure/expense or which are
legally restricted to a specific future use.

Designations

Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources,

N. Self-Insurance

In general, the State is self-insured for health care claims, workers' compensation, vehicle liability, public
fidelity blanket bonds, property losses, and tort liability . Estimates for significant incurred but not reported
claims are included in accrued liabilities.

O. Intergovernmental Revenues/Receivables

Intergovernmental revenues primarily represent resources from reimbursement-type grants received from

the federal government. Intergovernmental receivables and revenues are recorded when the related grant
expenditures/expenses are incurred.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

P, Interfund Traasactions
The State records the following types of transactions among funds:

Operating 'i'ransfers — Legally required transfers are reported when incwred as "operating trunsfers-in” by
the receiving fund and as "operating transfers-out" by the disbursing fund.

Transfers of Expendiures (Reimbursements) — Reimburseiments of expenditures made by one fund for
‘nother are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures/
expenses in the reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers — Nonroutine or nonrecurring transfers between funds are reported as additions
to or deductions from fund equity.

uasi-external Transactions — Charges or collections for services rendered by one fund to another are
recorded as revenues of the receiving fund and expenditures/expenses of the disbursing fund.

A summary of the State's interfund receivables and payables and operanng transters, as of June 30, 1990,
is presented in NOTE 7.

0. Memorandum Oaly —Total Columns

fotal colutnns on the general purpose financial statenicnts are captioned "Memorandum Only” to indicate
hat they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with GAAP. Neither are such data comparable
(b a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.
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NOTE2 RESTATEMENTS AND RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain restatements of fund balances/retained earnings balances, as of June 30, 1989, are summarized as
follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

June 30, 1989,

Fund Balance/ Increase July 1, 1989,
Retained Earnings (Decrease) Fund Balance/
As Previously For Retained Earnings
Fund Type Reported Restatement As Restated
Special Revenue:
Student Loan Commiission.............. $ 52,251 $ (3,978) $ 48,273
Alli@thersht S, 1,230,683 - 1,230,683
Tl ota | o L e $ 1,282,934 $ (3,978) $ 1,278,956
Debt Service:
Ohio Building Authority .................. $ 171,367 $ (54,881) $ 116,486
Salt Fork Bond Retirement............. 5,217 (3,446) 1,771
All Others .....cocevevenrnienirenrerieerienn, 493,755 493,755
Total.oeiviiiircnininienecnecnecenenns $ 670,339 $ (58,327) $ 612,012
Capital Projects:
Ohio Building Authority .................. $ 1,039 $ 227,922 $ 228,961
Al Others .....c.cceirieniiennirincrernnenen, 346,855 346,855
ALOtalfroy, T s, e e $ 347,894 $ 227,922 $ 575,816
Internal Service:
Ohio Building Authoiity .................. $ 193,523 $ (181,422) $ 12,101
Al Others .....cccovevierienenrerenrercrennen. 49,490 49,490
Total T s N il $ 243,013 $ (181,422) $ 61,591

For the Student Loan Commission Special Revenue Fund, fund balance was reduced by approximately $4
million to correct an error in the intergovernmental receivable balance at June 30, 1989.

For the Ohio Building Authority, a portion of the cash and investments balances, as of June 30, 1989,
reported for the Internal Service and Debt Service funds in the amount of $173 million and $54.9 million,
respectively, were reclassified to the Capital Projects Fund. Additionally, retained earnings for the Ohio
Building Authority Intemal Service Fund was reduced by approximately $8.4 million to correct errors in the
leases receivable and bonds payable balances at June 30, 1989.

For the Salt Fork Bond Retirement Fund, fund balance was reduced by approximately $3.4 million to
correct an error in the cash with custodian balance at June 30, 1989.

Other minor reclassifications were made as necessary to comply with current reporting practices.
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NOTE 3 GAAP vs. BUDGETARY BASIS

Actual revenues, operating transfers-in, expenditures, encumbrances, and operating transfers-out on the
budgetary basis do not equal those reported on the GAAP basis in the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund.
This inequality results primarily from basis differences in the recognition of accruals, deferred revenue,
interfund transactions, and loan transactions, and from timing differences in the budgetary basis of account-
ing for encumbrances. On the budgetary basis, encumbrances are recognized as expenditures in the year
encumbered, while on the modified accrual basis, expenditures are recognized when goods or services are
received regardless of the year encumbered.

Budgetary nditures in the accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

inF -s —Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represent original appropriations modified by
supplement:! 2nd amended appropriations.

A recon iliation of the fund balances recorded under the two bases for the General, special revenue, and
de ds is prosented on the following page.
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NOTE 3 GAAP vs. BUDGETARY BASIS (Continued)

Reconciliation of GAAP Basis Fund Balances to Budgetary Basis Fund Balances
June 30, 1990
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Debt
General Revenue Service
Total Fund Balances - GAAP Basis .............cecereveeremnnnnnn. $ 1,154,780 $ 1,466,897 $ 612,265
Less: Unbudgeted Fund Balances ---- 304,511 * 488,500
Total Budgeted Fund Balances - GAAP Basis................... 1,154,780 1,162,386 123,765
l.ess: Reserved Fund Balances ..........cueeeeeveevveersenninnn.n 227,409 1,256,256 123,765
Less: Designated Fund Balances..................ovveeeveoenonan. 386,580 - -
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances -
GAARIBasIS . T8 e i e 540,791 (93,870)
BASIS DIFFERENCES
Revenue Accruals/Adjustments:
Taxes ReCaiVable ...........ccccivereniveecee e (631,515) (189,787 ) “eae
Intergovernmental Receivable....................... (311,244) (111,515) -
Loans Receivable .............cvuvueveuencrieeeeecennersenssssssveneenns (4,181) (23,265)
Other Receivables ..........cuvveerecccscnseenerenessesssssesenns (11,789) (7,135) veen
Due from Other FUNdS ........ccceuueeceemneeeneecereessenrersesennns (13,240) {26,441)
Deferred Revenues ...................... . 65 40,695 e
SUBLOtAI ..covviviricceercttrner e e (971,904 ) (317,448)
Expendilure Accruals/Adjustments:
Accounts Payable ...........ccecreuveveriniceeeeesresresessonns 59,619 121,545
410,770
91,123 255,726
23,292 5,564
Refund and Other Liabilities ..............cceeveeervevrnnrren.. 396,077 80,345
Other ASSBLS.....cueeecrerrereneteseeiesisese e resss s (819) -=e- =
SUBIOTAl ...t e 980,062 463,180
Other Adjustments:
Fund Balance Reclassifications:
From Undesignated (Budgetary Basis)
to Designated for Budget Stabilization ..................... 364,363 -
Other Reclassifications .........o.oeeeeeveeeeeeveveensssesonn, 22,217 (415) 112,954
Other ... o ., o . Sy, (835) -
SUBLOLAL ....coorrieeirrenn e 386,580 (1,250) 112,954
Total Basis DIfferences .........c.oeeeeveevvreevererereevssssoosn 394,738 144,482 112,954
MMING DIFFERENCES
ENCUMDBFANCES ....ooceveeerrieeieisve e sessevesesee oo (51,201) (134,189) -
Unreserved/Undesignated and Designated for
Budget Stabilization and Capital Reserve
Fund Balances (Deficits) - Budgetary Basis .................. $ 884,328 $ (83577) $ 112,954

* In addition to the Ohlo Turnpike Commission, this amount includes certain unbudgeted activities within the Community and Economic
Development, Employment Services, Education, Student Loan Commission, and Other special revenue funds.
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NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Legal Requirements

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasurer of State and the State Board of Deposit are governed
by the Uniform Depository Act, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised Code, which requires that monies held by the
State be maintained in one of the following three classifications:

Active Deposits — Those monies required to be kept in a cash or near-cash status to meet current demands.
Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the State's treasury or in any of the following:

+ A commercial account that is payable or withdrawable, in whole or in part, on demand;
« A negotiable order of withdrawal account;

» A money market deposit account; or

« A designated warrant clearance account.

Tnactive Deposits — Those monies not required for use within the current two-year period of designation
of depositories. Inactive monies may be deposited or invested only in certificates of deposit maturing not
later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories.

Interim Deposits — Those monies not required for immediate use, but needed before the end of the current

period of designation of depositories. Interim deposits may be deposited or invested in the following instru-
ments:

» Jonds, notes, or other obligations of or guaranteed by the United States, or those for which the
faith of the United States is pledged for the payment of principal and interest;

«  Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any federal government
agency, or the Export-Import Bank of Washington;

+ Repurchase agreements in the securities enumerated above;

« Interim deposits in the eligible institutions applying for interim monies;
« Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

o The Treasurer of State's investment pool;

« Linked deposits, reduced-rate deposits at financial institutions that provide reduced-rate loans to
small businesses, as authorized under Section 135.63, Ohio Revised Code;

«  Agricultural linked deposits, reduced-rate deposits at financial institutions placed on or before
June 30, 1987, that provide reduced-rate loans to farmers, as authorized under Section 135.74,
Ohio Revised Code;

+ Reverse repurchase agreements with any cligible financial institution that is a member of the federal
reserve system or federal home loan bank, or any recognized U. S. government securities dealer;



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1990

NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

* Securities lending agreements with any eligible financial institution that is a member of the federal
reserve system or federal home loan bank, or any recognized U.S. government securities dealer;

¢ Commercial paper maturing in 180 days or less, rated in one of the two highest rating categories by
two nationally recognized rating agencies, and not exceeding five percent of the investment
portfolio; and

* Bankers' acceptances maturing in 270 days or less and not exceeding 10 percent of the investment
portfolio.

The State's deposits must be held in insured depositories approved by the State Board of Deposit and must
be fully collateralized.

In some cases, deposit and investment policies of certain individual funds and component units are estab-
lished by Ohio Revised Code provisions other than the Uniform Depository Act and by bond trust agree-
ments. In accordance with applicable statutory authority, the State Highway Patrol Retirement System
Pension Trust Fund and the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation may also invest in common and pre-
ferred stocks, corporate bonds and notes, mortgage loans, real estate, and/or other investments.

B. Deposits

As of June 30, 1990 (December 31, 1989, for the Ohio Water Development Authority, Ohio Bureau of
Workers' Compensation, State Highway Patrol Retirement System, State Parking Commission, and Ohio
Turnpike Commission), the carrying amount of the State's deposits was (amounts expressed in thousands)
$299,894 and the bank balance was $258,128. Of the bank balance, $31,878 was fully insured or collater-
alized with securities held by the State or its agent in the State's name, $201,642 was collateralized with se-
curities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or its agent in the State's name, and
$24,608 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

C. Investments

The State categorizes investments to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the State at year end.
Category 1 includes investments that are insured, registered, or held by the State or its agent in the State's
name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the counterparty’s trust depart-
ment or its agent in the State's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by
the counterparty, its trust department, or its agent, but not in the State's name.

Certain investments have not been categorized because the securities are not used as evidence of the invest-
ment. These uncategorized investments include ownership in mutual funds, and limited partnerships, the
deposit with the federal government, and the deposit with the State's deferred compensation plan.
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NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The following summary identifies the level of credit risk assumed by the State and the total carrying amount
and market value of the State's investments, as of June 30, 1990 (December 31, 1989, for the Ohio Bureau
of Workers' Compensation, Ohio Air Quality Development Authority, the Ohio Water Development Au-
thority, State Highway Patrol Retirement System, State Parking Commission, and Ohio Tumpike Commis-

sion) (amounts expressed in thousands):

Carrying Amount
Market
Category 1 Category2 Category 3 Total Value

U.S. government obligations

and U.S. government agency

obligations ......cc.ceieernermrrernennesenacans $5,550,244 $1,180,707 $ 341,141 $ 7,072,092 §$ 7,094,522
Municipal obligations ..........ccceeveurne 411 - 58,727 59,138 59,076
Common and preferred stock .......... 62,397 1,660,894 ---- 1,723,291 1,752,260
Corporate bonds and notes ............. 142,329 1,245,843 - 1,388,172 1,386,702
Repurchase agreements...........c....... 103,010 9,505 11,557 124,072 124,072
Commercial Paper ........ccoveerveeessisees - 1,048,699 5,096 1,053,795 1,053,795
Mortgage 10ans .......cccvervennecniscscnnen 934,911 805,403 1,740,314 1,740,314
Other investments ........ccccoceinvncineee 48,742 14,169 4,038 66,949 66,949

115 soxdtreredornaaat i i $6,842,044 $5,965,220 $ 420,559 13,227,823 13,277,690
Mutual funds ....ccceenieneinnnnininnnnn. 35,014 35,250
Investment in limited partnership ....... 829 829
Deposit with federal government ....... 857,651 857,651
Deposit with deferred

compensation plan .......ccceeeeecnnns 265,204 265,204

T otalfpttn el s Rl $14,386,521 $14,436,624

[he total carrying amount of the State's deposits and investments, as of June 30, 1990, reported in the
State's financial statements is $14.4 billion. The total carrying amount of the State’s deposits and invest-
ments categorized and/or disclosed in this Note is $14.7 billion. A reconciliation of the difference follows

(amounts expressed in thousands):

Cash equity with Treasurer

(Restricted and unrestricted) ........cccoovveeniiinnnnnn.
Cash with custodian ..........ceceeerverivreninnnennneenenie
IVESHMENES cvvveeeerieieenicrerecssteisnesensisesisasaasssessnes
Deposit with federal government ..............ccvvennnnee
Deposit with deferred compensation plan ...............
Restricted Assets:
HIVESHMEIS vevveiieeeeeceeeerie s
Dedicated investments .......cccceviverininenecnnien AR
Carrying amount per combined balance sheet........
Outstanding warrants and other open items ........

Total depositsfinvesiments categorized
and/or disclosed ...t

Deposits Investments Total
$ $ 3,186,436 $ 3,186,436
59,795 10,910 70,705
5,013 9,153,765 9,158,778
857,651 857,651
265,204 265,204
2,071 45,604 47,675
- 805,278 805278
66,879 14,324,848 14,391,727
233,015 61,673 294,688
$ 299,894 $ 14,386,521 $ 14,686,415
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NOTE S5 TAXES

Taxes receivable, as of June 30, 1990, consisted of the following (amounts expressed in thousands):

Special Debt
General Revenue Service Total
INCOME TAXES ..evvrvereierinreeneenrnrrneeeeenne $ 285,701 $ 37,575 $ --- $ 323,276
Sales TaXeS ..ccovvrruvevererecssrrnererssersienens 333,215 18,769 - 351,984
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes ........ccc....... - 117,628 3,884 121,512
Other TaXeS .....ccuvvvenieiirsrrereessiecnnens 12,599 15,815 4,007 32,421
Totalf i B, ko s e $ 631,515 $ 189,787 $ 7,891 $ 829,193

As of June 30, 1990, refund liabilities related to income and corporation franchise taxes, totaling $384.1
million, were reported as "Refund and Other Liabilities," of which $345.1 million was recorded in the
General Fund and $39 million was recorded in the special revenue funds.

NOTE 6 LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable, net of uncollectible amounts, as of June 30, 1990, consisted of the following (amounts
expressed in thousands):

Special Internal
General Revenue Service Total
Community and Economic Development:
Economic Development.......ccccoenverneeee $ - $ 170,535 $ --- $ 170,535
Minority Business Development ........... 6,913 6,913
Ohio Housing Finance Agency ............. - 6,553 6,553
ES{T] o] o] - USRI 184,001 184,001
Education:
Emergency School Advancement......... 11,466 1,717 13,183
Public School Building .........c.ccceenenuenn - 34,627 --- 34,627
Vocational Education .........ccccceceveecnnne. 2,559 723 3,282
Subtotal .......cooeveeevireenineeinnn e 14,025 37,067 51,092
Student Loans .....uevvieeeevvereieereiiieeieeenne 15,627 15,627
Natural Resources .......cceevveeerevieininnrirenns 186 -- 186
Agriculture ... 39 - 39
Water Pollution Control ............................ - - 2,008 2,008

Total..oovee e $ 14,025 $ 236,920 $ 2,008 $ 252,953

putoomn . S,
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NOTE 6 LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Other Receivables

Other receivables, as of June 30, 1990, consisted of the following (amounts expressed in thousands):

Special Debt Capital internal  Trust and
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise  Service Agency Total
Accounts Receivable ........... $ 260 $3872 $ - $ - $ 84034 $ 101 $ - § 88267
Interest Receivable............... 11,362 10,298 29,869 3,787 - 53 3,204 58,573
Leases Receivable .............. - - - -~ 53,380 - 53,380
Receivables from
Lottery Sales Agents ......... - - -~ 28,696 - - 28,696
Claims and Settiements
Receivable ........cccccuinenennes - - - -~ - - 35,824 35,824
Unemployment Surcharges
Receivable .........ccooverrvennnns - 7,300 - - - - - 7,300
Miscellaneous
Rece ables ......ccevvvvurinnne 5 1,008 e 306 149 2,383 === 4,013
Total ... covrvereiiiisie s $11,789 $22,478 $29,869  $4,093 $112,879 $55,917 $39,028 $276,053
The Oh ding * rity ha- - ntered into long-term lease agreements for office space under direct
fi g leases with sove aments, which are charged a pro-rata share of the buildings' debt service
and operat’ on squ~ - footage occupied. A schedule of future lease amounts due the Ohio
Buil g nal Ser - Fund, net of executory costs, is as follows:
Yea -3 Lease Amounts Due
1981 oot e eresmsressessasnsnstsss s e s s aen g st st asas s s 00 $ 6,220
1997 .. c e ieveeseseevssesessaesssseassanssnnstesas et asre bt i e sar e ar s bese 6,222
e o veeiotheiitittences rantssessansseennanseastansstotss 6,223
T OO PP POIR R TOTS PP 6,229
1995 . eeeeressetierses e sts st sssss s e s s et s 6,223
TREICA =7 . erreeeseeseeesetissieessa e et e s s s ae s 77,781
Total MINIMUM @110 7115 0 reereeniieisseecsneeisienssseessssssssssssssisssinsssssssens 108,898
Less: Amount representing interest ..........covvceinniiinininen (55,518)

Present value of minimum lease amounts due ...........cccovveriinieerncsnnnenniinne $ 53,380
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NOTE 7 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES/IQPERATING TRANSF ERS

Interfund receivables and payables, and operating transfers, as of June 30, 1990, are summarized as follows
(amounts expressed in thousands):

Operating Operating

Fund Type/Fund Due from Due to Transfers-in  Transfers-out
GONETAL...........ooeoterrrererenrccreee e s eeseeeesesssssssesns $13,240 $23,292 $ 94,113 $ 508,054
Special Revenue:

HUMAN SBIVICES ...uveeurriierisiserenenoeeesssssessssesosmsessonns 225 829 3,802 7,257
NEEITD ot st ety Hrrerere R ey ey v el 1,691 281 7,400 1
Mental Health and Retardation ...............ccovvvuvmecnn.., 333 752 12,813
EdUCAHON .....oriteeeerecneeeneesese et seeeensesessesesssenanne 1,123 237 645,673 12,017
Highway Safety ..........couveiveeveiiieriieeee e 10,487 1,939 90,936 406
Highway Operating ...........oceeeeeeeeeeveereereeeeseesoseesesssssn 3,712 482 391,904 101,410
Ohio Turnpike COMMISSION ......c.ceveneevveerreerenrerennnns ---- 1,034 - 44,331
Revenue Distribution ............ceeeeeueveeeeeonreeveseooeeono 6,758 162 2,933 447,108
Local Transportation Improvements ............................ 315 43,788
Other Special Revenue FUNdS ..........ooevoeveeveeeeevoeenn, 2,368 1,767 14,011 7,635
SUDLOtED ...ttt 27,012 7,483 1,200,447 632,978
Debt Service:
Economic Development Bond Service.........ovevuennnn. —e-- 17,093
Development Bond Retirement .........cooveevevveeeeeeoevnn, - 18,795 ween
Public Improvements Bond Retirement ....................... - 17,402 ----
Local Infrastructure Improvements Bond Retirement .. --- 13,754
Ohio Public Facilities COMMISSION .........oceovveeeeveeeernnn, .- —e-- 306,809
Ohio Building AUhOTItY .......c...covucereerieeresreesresenns - 99,111 2,226
Other Debt Service Funds ..........cocecvveverevevernerenennnn, 732 17,622 e
SUDLOIAL .ottt e 732 - 490,586 2,226
Capital Projects:
Jhio Turnpike COMMISSION ........cvvereeeeerrreeserereresnn. 45,950
Other Capital Projects FUNS ..........cccvveeeeeeererererrerans 851 935 6,894 46
SUBLOtal ...t e 851 935 52,844 46
Enterprise:
LiQUOr CONEIOl ....u.eeeceeeeereeiresrenrerectecsescsseee s res e 36 54 - 65,032
Ohio Lottery Commission ............. Moo e 726 1,990 - 644,267
Tuition Trust AUthORItY .........ceeevieenrreereeeeeeeeses. 2 166 e e
SUBLOTAl v 764 2,210 —ee 709,299
Internal Service:
Ohio Data Network ...............cruevceeeeereceeeesresesnsesssnns 11,293 499 e
Ohio Penal INQUSHIES .....cuevveeeececeeeeeeeecererseesssessn 10,348 1,649 82
Water Pollution Control Loan Fund. ..............eevnn..... 135 10,620 -
Other Internal Service Funds ..........ccc.ocoevevvvevvrennnnn. 8,730 50 --e- ---
SUDLOLAL .t e e, 30,371 2,333 10,702 “ee-
Pension Trust:
Slate Highway Patrol .............ccccooveevecimeee 1,799
Agency:
Holding and Distribution ..............eeeveveevooeeoeoo -eam 35,368
Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits .................... 363 12,100
Other Agency FUNS ...........cc.cceeeeeenenennn, RN 21
SUBtOtal ..., 384 47,468 i -=en
Subtotal - Trust and Agency Funds .........coo.o.......... 2,183 47,468
Total per Financial Statements .............c..cccorurrunn..... 75,153 83,721 1,848,692 1,852,603
Reconciliation for Timing Differences for Funds with .
December 31, 1989, Year Ends ..........cocnnnn........ 8,452 (116) 7,911 4,000

Reconciled Total .......c.oooouveeeoveeeeooee oo $83,605 $83,605 $ 1856603 $ 1,856,603
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NOTE 8 FIXED ASSETS

A summary of fixed assets by category follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Internal General Fixed
Enterprise Service Assets Total

LANG oeercrieererersransnenseesssssssessssesessssssasassasssasseses $ 22,255 $ $ 145,687 $ 167,942
BUIAINGS .vevevererreressinessasnersrannessesisssisisessrsisnssnns 135,151 3,190 1,591,875 1,730,216
Land IMProvements ...........ceeevesrsrsaniinssessiensenss wmen 97,678 97,678
Machinery and Equipment ........ccocoeenieiiniennas 74,246 82,714 153,361 310,321
State VEhICIBS .v.ccrerererrrninisereeriniseccssisisnianse 2,616 291 164,798 167,705
Construction-iN-Progress .........cceecesseeccsniicnnens 138,852 3,174 120,383 262,409

SUDLOLA! uovireereinenrienerassirsisnisereensissessasessssssenns 373,120 89,369 2,273,782 2,736,271
Less: Accumulated Depreciation .........cccceeuens (67,358) (44,608) (111,966)
TOMAD oveeeereenrerrenreresiesessssssesssssarsrsssassessssesssserens $ 305,762 $ 44,761 $2,273,782 $ 2,624,305

No projects were under construction, for the year ended June 30, 1990, that resulted in capitalized interest
for the proprietary fund types.

State capital appropriations to State-assisted universities and colleges are not reflected in the assets above,
but are generally capitalized and reported in the respective financial statements of those entities.

Changes in general fixed assets for the year ended June 30, 1990, were as follows (amounts expressed in
thousands):

Balance Deletions/ Balance
July 1, 1989 Additions  Net Transfers June 30, 1990
LANA oovrrereiisrnrerservensersesssssssssossssanasssssssasssssnssssses $ 167,234 $ 2397 $ (13,944) 3 145,687
BUIIJINGS ..vcvveriereremennsnsensosisssissroranasassssssssusseans 1,383,896 10,134 197,845 1,591,875
Land Improvememnts ......cceeeiiiisnnisesrenseses 78,215 300 19,163 97,678
Machinery and EQUIipMent .......ooeiriiienneenreee 139,829 14,687 (1,155) 153,361
State VEhiCleS ...ccocereriernieririsresnsesssnsesseesesnasns 162,139 24,000 (21,341) 164,798
Construction-in-Progress .......ccceiiesesiccsssensee 227,602 97,408 (204,627 ) 120,383
TOAL ..veevererrecrererenssssonssistsassessssesssatssansasssssscnnsans $ 2,148,915 $ 148,926 $ (24,059) $ 2,273,782

In the proprietary funds, the following estimated useful lives are used to compute depreciation:

Buildings 20-45 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-20 years
State Vehicles 5 years
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NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS

All part-time and full-time employees and elected officials of the State are eligible to be covered by one of
the following retirement plans:

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)

State Highway Patrol Retirement System (SHPRS)

The payrolls for State employees covered by PERS, STRS, and SHPRS for the year ended June 30, 1990,
were $1.55 billion, $33 million, and $44 million, respectively; the State's total payroll was $2.1 billion.

A. PERS and STRS

Both PERS and STRS are cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement systems.

Participants in PERS, who retire at age 60 with five or more years of service credit or at any age with 30 or
more years of service credit, are eligible to annual retirement benefits. Persons may retire with a reduced
benefit as early as age 55 with 25 years of service. Retirement benefits vest after five years of credited
service. Law enforcement personnel can retire under the PERS plan at age 52 with 25 years of service
credit or as early as age 48 under qualifying circumstances.

PERS benefit payments vary in amount depending on length of public service, final average salary, and
plan of payment selection. For nonlaw enforcement personnel, final salary is determined by taking the av-
erage of the three highest years of earnable salary. For law enforcement officers, the benefit is calculated
by multiplying 2.5 percent of final average salary by the actual years of service for the first 20 years of
service and 2.1 percent of final average salary for each year of service over 20 years.

PERS also provides survivor and disability benefits. PERS benefits are established under Chapter 145,
Ohio Revised Code.

Participants in STRS, who retire after 30 years of credited service regardless of age, or at or after age 55
with 25 years of credited service, or at or after age 60 with five years of credited service, are entitled to a
maximum annual retirement benefit, payable in monthly installments for life, equal to the greater of the
"two-percent formula benefit" or the "money-purchase benefit" calculation.

Under the "two-percent formula benefit" calculation, the maximum annual retirement allowance is equal to
two percent of an average of a member's three highest years' salary multiplied by the member's number of
years of credited service (maximum of 45 years). Under the "money-purchase benefit" calculation, a
member's lifetime contributions, plus interest at specified rates, are matched by an equal amount from
contributed employer funds. This total is then divided by an actuarially determined annuity factor
to determine the maximum annual retirement allowance. Effective for retirements occurring after
September 15, 1989, the benefit formula for STRS increased to 2.1 percent of final average salary a year
and to 2.5 percent a year for earned Ohio service over 30 years. Teachers retiring between July 1, 1989,
and September 15, 1989, were permitted to have their retirement benefits recalculated based on the new
schedule. Annually, after retirement, STRS benefits are increased three percent if the cost of living, as
measured by the Consumer Price Index, has increased at three percent on a cumulative basis.
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STRS also provides death, survivors', and disability, health care, and supplemental benefits. STRS bene-
fits are established under Chapter 3307, Ohio Revised Code.

Employer and employee required contributions to PERS and STRS are established under the Ohio Revised

Code and are based on percentages of covered employees' gross salaries, which are calculated annually by
the retirement systems' actuaries. Contribution rates for fiscal year 1990 were as follows:

Contribution Rates - Fiscal Year 1990

Employee Share Employer Share
PERS:
Regular Employees 8.50% 13.71%
Law Enforcement Employees 9.50% 18.10%
STRS 8.77% 14.00%

For PERS, 9.91 percent and 13.08 percent of the employer rate is used to fund the pension obligations of
regular and law enforcement employees, respectively. For STRS, 12 percent of the employer rate is used
to fund pension obligations. The difference between the total employer rates and the portion used to fund
pension obligations is the amount used to fund health care programs for retirants covered under each plan.

The contribution requirement for the pension obligation under each plan for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1990, is summarized below:

Contributed Amounts — Fiscal Year 1990
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Employee Share Employer Share

PERS:
Regular Employees $ 129,948 $ 151,504
Law Enforcement Employees 1,758 2,420
Total $ 131,706 $ 153,924
STRS $ 2,886 $ 3,949

The "pension benefit obligation” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension
benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and any step-rate benefits, estimated to be
payable in the future as a result of employece service to date. The measure, which is the actuarial present
value of credited projected benefits, is intended to assist financial statement users in assessing a pension
plan's funding status on a going-concern basis and progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due and in making comparisons among public employce rctirement systems and employers.
The PERS and STRS do not make separate measurements of assets and pension benefit obligation for
individual employers.
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Therefore, the pension benefit obligation determined through the most recent actuarial valuation, the net
assets available for benefits, and the unfunded pension benefit obligation for PERS and STRS, as a whole,
are presented below (amounts expressed in thousands):

PERS, STRS,
as of December 31, 1988 as of July 1, 1989
Pension benefit obligation $15,658,000 $21,978,477
Net assets available for benefits
(valued at cost) 13,290,000 16,057,321
Unfunded pension benefit obligation* $ 2,368,000 $ 5,921,156

*Excludes health care benefits

The market value of net assets available for pension benefits for PERS was $13.7 billion at December 31 :
1988; the market value of net assets available for pension benefits for STRS at July 1, 1989, was un-
available. Actuarial valuations are calculated annually by the retirement systems' actuaries.

Occasionally, the General Assembly increases benefit payments to the current PERS and STRS retirees. In
certain instances, concurrent with the passage of such legislation, a provision for payment of these benefits
through State appropriations is made. During the year ended June 30, 1990, the State paid $3.2 million and
$5.3 million to PERS and STRS, respectively, for benefit increases. Funding for these benefit increases is
on a pay-as-you-go basis by the State.

The State's actuarially determined contribution requirement for PERS represented approximately 27 percent
of total PERS actuarially-determined contribution requirements during calendar year 1989 for all partici-
pating entities. Information from STRS to determine the State's actuarially determined contribution require-
ment as a percentage of total STRS actuarially determined contribution requirements of all participating
entities for its fiscal year ended June 30, 1990, was not available at the time of publication of this report;
during fiscal year 1989, the State's required contribution to STRS represented less than one percent of total
STRS contributions of all participating entities.

Three-year historical trend information showing PERS's progress in accumulatin g sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due is presented in the PERS financial report, as of December 31, 1989, the most recent data
available. Ten-year historical trend information for STRS is presented in the STRS financial report, as of
June 30, 1989, the most recent data available.

B. SHPRS

SHPRS was established in 1944 by the General Assembly as a single-employer, detined benefit pension
plan. SHPRS is authorized under Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, to provide retirement and disability
benefits to retired members and survivor benefits to qualified dependents of deceased members of the Ohio
State Highway Patrol.



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1990

NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS (Continued)

SHPRS's general administration and management is vested in a six-member retirement board, which con-
sists of three elected members and three statutory members. The board appoints an executive director,
actuary, investment advisor, investment monitor, and other employees.

SHPRS membership consisted of the following, as of December 31, 1989:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits and terminated employees entitled to

benefits but not yet receiving them ... 599
Current employees:
VESIEA orvvveveeerreeseressrasssssesssrossansssasssaeesssionsesssstostessaesssassstsssssssststsstssesnserstsasananas 301
NONVESIEA o ..veeveeeeersesseessessssnsseresnassssesssosssssossessaossnastsensasstsssessssstosesssssssntassansansse 964
TOUAl covvveeieeereseseseseesessessessnsessssnsesassessintsssssnsesssessorassesartaesssssssssstsssssnsnsasssnessssens 1,864

Contributions to SHPRS

Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, requires contributions by active members and the Ohio State Highway
Patrol. The employee contribution rate is established by the General Assembly, and any change in the rate
requires legislative action. The employer contribution rate is established by the SHPRS Retirement Board
and certified to the State of Ohio every two years. By law, the employer rate may not exceed three times
the employee contribution rate. Active members and the Ohio State Highway Patrol are required to contrib-
ute 10.5 percent and 24.39 percent, respectively, of active member payroll. Contributions may be refunded
to a member who terminates employment with the Ohio State Highway Patrol or to the member's benefici-
ary following the member’s death.

SHPRS Benefits

Members are eligible for normal retirement benefits upon reaching age 52 and accumulating at least 20
years of Ohio State Highway Patrol service credit. The benefits are a percentage of the member's final
average salary, the average of the member's three highest salaried years. The percentage is determined by
multiplying 2.5 percent times the first 20 years of service plus two percent times the next five years plus 1.5
percent for each year in excess of 25 years of service. A member's pension cannot exceed 72 percent of the
final average salary. Early retirement with reduced benefits is available upon reaching age 48 with 25 years
of service credit.

In addition to the retirement benefits, SHPRS also provides for disability, survivors', and health care bene-
fits. Qualified dependents of a deceased member are eligible for monthly survivors' benefits. All members
receiving a benefit from SHPRS are eligible to receive medical insurance.

Members with credited service from prior Ohio State Highway Patrol service, military service time prior to
employment, military service interrupting Ohio State Highway Patrol service, and full-time police or fire
service are eligible to purchase SHPRS service credit accumulated in one or all of the retirement plans
related to the above services. Members of the SHPRS with prior participation in Ohio's State Teachers
Retirement System, School Employees Retirement System, Public Employees Retirement System, or
Cincinnati Retirement System are eligible to purchase service credit for one or all of the related retirement

plans.
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SHPRS Funding Status and Progress
The amount shown as "pension benefit obligation"” is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value

of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases estimated to be payable in the
future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is the actuarial present value of credited pro-
jected benefits and is intended to help financial statement users in assessing SHPRS's funding status on a
going-concern basis and its progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due and in
making comparisons among public employee retirement systems. The measure is independent of the actu-
arial funding method used to determine contributions to SHPRS.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation, as of December 31, 1989.
Actuarial valuations are calculated annually by SHPRS's actuaries. Significant actuarial assumptions used

in the valuation include the following:

« Rate of return on the SHPRS investments of 7.75 percent, compounded annually, net of admini-
stration expenses; the assumed rate of return was revised from 7.5 percent for the previous year;

« Projected salary increases of 5.5 percent, compounded annually, attributable to inflation;

« Additional projected salary increases ranging from O to 4.2 percent a year attributable to seniority
and merit;

« Post-retirement mortality life expectancies of members based on the 1971 Group Annuity
Mortality Male and Female Tables, projected to 1984;

« Rates of withdrawal from active service before retirement for reasons other than death and, rates of
disability and expected retirement ages developed on the basis of actual plan experience;

«  Health care premiums are assumed to increase 5.5 percent annually;

« Health care benefit recipients are eligible for Medicare on attainment of age 65, or immediately,
if retired for disability;

« Employer contributions paid in equal installments throughout the employer fiscal year; and

Pension benefits will increase after retirement in accordance with valuation assumptions.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements were the same as those used
to compute the standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation.
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The total unfunded pension benefit obligation at December 31, 1989, was $64 million as follows (amounts
expressed in thousands):

Pension Benefit Obligation:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits and terminated
employees not receiving benefits .................. NI e oA oo o et IO $83,025

Current employees:

Accumulated employee contributions,

including allocated INVeStMENt iNCOME .............c.cvvemeeeeeeenrroesoeoeoeoooooeoeooe 31,053
Employer-financed VESIed .............ccverumeiuueiruceonceseesescesssess oo 59,495
Employer-financed NONVESIE ............oc.uuevuuecvenceeeeoseeesssres oo 55,246
Total pension benefit 0bligation ..............c..erevuerveeceeecereeeeeseeeesseeessoesos oo $228,819

Net Assets Available for Pension Benefits:

Net assets available for pension benefits

(estimated market value is $189 MillioN) ............coooevvvermvrooeeoooosooooon 165,153
Unfunded pension benefit 0bligation ....................cocoueeeneevevereonsreosossosooooseoso $ 63,666

Certain changes in plan benefits and the increase in the assumed rate of return on SHPRS's investments
caused the pension benefit obligation to increase approximately $7.1 million during calendar year 1989.

SHPRS Contributions Required and Contributions Made

SHPRS's funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates that,
cxpressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to accumulate sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due. Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the entry
age actuarial funding method. SHPRS also uses the level percentage of payroll method to amortize the
unfunded liability over a closed, 40-year period through the year 2019.

During calendar year 1989, contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined contribu-
tion requirements determined through actuarial valuations performed at December 31, 1988. Total em-
ployer and employee contributions consisted of the following (amounts expressed in thousands):

Perc=nt of Active

Amount Member Payroll
Normalcosts...........co.coo..... EO DRI WA S Rttt L)l [ 580y $10,730 24.99%
Amortization of the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability................o.cvevvemvmeoesooo 3691 8.59

Total........u..... s, 5. et etes e $14,421 33.58%
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Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay pension
benefits when due. Three-year trend information for SHPRS follows:

1989 1988 1987
Net assets available for benefits as a
percentage of pension benefit obligation 72.2% 73.9% 69.7%
Unfunded pension benefit obligation as a
percentage of annual covered payroll 148.3% 126.1% 149.0%
Employer contributions as a percentage
of annual covered payroll 20.0% 20.6% 20.6%

SHPRS maintains its own accounting system separately from the State's and publishes a separate publicly
available component unit financial report. The available required 10-year historical trend information
showing the fund's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented in that
report, as of December 31, 1989.

SHPRS Health Care Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, SHPRS pays health insurance claims on behalf of all persons
receiving a monthly pension or survivor benefit and Medicare Part B basic premiums for those eligible
benefit recipients upon proof of coverage. The cost of retiree health care benefits is recognized as claims
are incurred and premiums are paid. T he calendar year 1989 expense was $1.4 million.

Health care benefits are funded on an actuarial basis. During calendar year 1989, average rates of 3.12 per-
cent and 1.09 percent of active member payroll were allocated to fund health care normal costs and the am-
ortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, respectively, and employer and employee contribu-
tions for health care benefits during 1989 are included in the total contribution balances disclosed above.
The net assets available for benefits allocated to health care costs at December 31, 1989, was $30.3 million.

The actuarial accrued liability for health care benefits, the portion of the present value of plan promises to
pay benefits in the future that are not covered by future normal cost contributions, was $43.9 million, as of
December 31, 1989.

NOTE 10 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

‘The State has pledged its faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation
bonds accounted for and included with obligations in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

At various times since 1921, Ohio voters, by 12 constitutional amendments (the last adopted in 1987), have
authorized the incurrence of general obligation debt for the construction and improvement of State facili-
ties and highways, research and development of coal technology, and local infrastructure improvements. [n
practice, general obligation bonds are retired over periods of 10 to 35 years.
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As of June 30, 1990, $3.96 billion in general obligation debt (excluding Highway Obligations discussed
below), had been authorized by constitutional amendment of which $2.7 billion had been issued and $414
million was outstanding; the authorization to issue $233 million had expired.

Coal Development bonds may be issued as long as the outstanding principal amount does not exceed $100
million,

lion. The aggregate of General Assembly authorizations, as of June 30, 1990, for Highway Obligations,
was $1.34 billion, of which $1.07 billion had been issued and $293 million Wwas outstanding. Additional
Highway Obligations may be issued from time to time, as authorized by the General Assembly, as outstand-
ing Highway Obligations are retired.

A 1987 constitutional amendment authorized the issuance of $1.2 billion of general obligation bonds for
infrastructure improvements (Infrastructure Bonds), of which no more than $120 million may be issued in
any year.

General obligation bonds outstanding, and bonds authorized but unissued, as of June 30, 1990, were as
follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Average
Net

Interest Maturing Outstanding Authorized
Purpose Issued Rates Through Balance But Unissued
Highway Obligations ..................... 1969-88 4.3-7.4% 1998 $ 292,725 $ 271,025
Improvements ...........coeovooon 1970-71 5.0-5.2 1992 24,600 ----
Public Improvements ...... TR b e 1971-75 4.3-6.0 1995 38,100 -
Development ...........c.ooovovooi 1968-72 4.3-5.9 1995 80,900 -
Coal Research/Development .......... 1986 6.2 1996 35,700 50,000
Infrastructure improvements ........... 1988-89 6.6-7.2 2009 235,150 960,000
T E L i - SIN. 1 e ioutte ol $ 707,175 $ 1,281,025

Changes in general obligation bonds during the year ended June 30, 1990, are summarized in NOTE 16.
Future general obligation debt service requirements, as of June 30, 1990, were as follows (amounts
expressed in thousands):

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
L e T $126,845 $ 38,243 $165,088
1992 v siisian e e sisiiiommsmoome e 108,320 31,210 139,530
1993 ............. EE TR ;. 84,400 25,189 109,589
1994 il i eiiionmerespronnsanmns.cosi L 71,155 20,577 91,732
(ST G W T SN 73,830 16,283 90,113
Thereafter ............ocoowerovvi 242,625 114,634 357,259

Total oo $707,175 $246,136 $953,311
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Special obligation bonds reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group have been author-
.7ed and issued by the Ohio Building Authority (OBA), the Ohio Public Facilities Commission (OPFC),
and the Department of Natural Resources (DNR). OBA bonds finance the capital costs of categories of fa-
cilities including correctional facilities and office buildings for State departments and agencies and, in some
cases, related facilities for local governments. OPEC bonds finance the cost of capital facilities for State-
supported and State-assisted institutions of higher education, mental hygiene and retardation, and parks and
recreation. DNR bonds finance the costs of improvements at Salt Fork State Park.

OBA bonds issued for State agencies are reflected as special obligation bonds, and OBA bonds issued for
related local government facilities are shown as revenue bonds (See NOTE 12).

OBA and OPFC bonds are secured by pledges of lease rental payments from General Fund appropriations,
funds held by trustees pursuant to related trust agreements, and other receipts, as required by the respective
bond documents.

Special obligation bonds outstanding, and bonds authorized but unissued, as of June 30, 1990, were as
follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Average

Net

Interest Maturing Outstanding Authorized
Organization Issued Rates Through Balance But Unissued
Ohio Building Authority ....c.ceeeseeereces 1979-89 5.0-9.8% 2014 $1,016,345 $
(and variable
rates)
Ohio Public Facilities

COMMISSION .eevrreerserinarasssssnaseancsnese 1970-89 5.0-13.1 2005 2,247,030 1,181,160
Department of Natural Resources... 1969 7.0 1999 3,490
TOLA o.veeeerrerrereesesassaesansnsssnssuasnsstns $3,266,865 $1,181,160

Changes in special obligation bonds reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for
the year ended June 30, 1990, are summarized in NOTE 16. Future special obligation bond service
requirements, as of June 30, 1990, were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
1997 vovreerreererersesesnesnasssssssrnsasansasens $ 192,837 $ 231,513 $ 424,350
1992 ..veeerrrerensenssensnesssssesasnsassesas 206,953 217,365 424,318
FOO3 ..oeeerierererresesisessssssesrssasanssenis 221,415 202,012 423,427
1904 .ooveeeerervesassesnsssnssissessanassones 231,896 185,527 417,423
1995 .veecereerrrrenerssersrsnsssasansasensasass 242,547 168,761 411,308
Thereafter ...ueiesesressssssenssscsecass 2,171,217 909,203 3,080,420
TOMAD vovvencrirseeresmsressesnesesnsnsssanesssaes $ 3,266,865 $1,914,381 $5,181,246
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During fiscal year 1990, the OBA issued $16.9 million of bond anticipation notes, which mature on Febru-
ary I, 1991. Total interest in the amount of approximately $1.1 million on the notes, which are reported as
“Special Obligation Notes" in the Ohio Building Authority Capital Projects Fund, is also scheduled to be
paid in fiscal year 1991,

In prior years, OBA and OPFC defeased certain bond issues by Placing the proceeds of new bonds in an ir-

revocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds, Accordingly, the trust

account's assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the State's financial statements.

As of June 30, 1990, $334 million and $194 million of OBA and OPFC bonds outstanding, respectively,
re considered defeased.

NOTE 12  REVENUE BONDS

T'he State Constitution permits State agencies and authorities to issue bonds that are not supported by the
faith and credit of the State. These bonds pledge income derived from user fees and rentals on the acquired
ur constructed assets to pay the debt service. Issuers include the Ohio Turnpike Commission (OTC), Treas-
urer of State for the Ohio Department of Development's Economic Development Financing Division
(EDFD), State Parking Commission (SPC), and Ohio Building Authority (OBA).

OTC bonds financed the construction and acquisition of roadways (the Ohio Turnpike) and equipment.
OTC bonds are payable from OTC revenues, including tolls and other user charges.

cial institution.

Additionally, taxable economic development bonds in the amount of $9.5 million, issued by the Treasurer
of State in connection with the Ohio Enterprise Bond Program, were outstanding, as of June 30, 1990.
Proceeds from this bond issuance in fiscal year 1988 were placed in a reserve with trustee and are pledged
L0 secure, in part, the repayment of other economic development bonds issued under this program.

During fiscal year 1990, $27.9 million of Ohio Enterprise bonds were issued under the authority of Section
166.09, Ohio Revised Code, to provide private entities with capital financing for economic development
projects. The Ohio Enterprise Bonds, which are reported as "no commitment" debt in NOTE 13, are pri-
marily sccured by the property financed, and payments by the borrowing entities are used to retire the debt
and to service interest payments.

>PC bonds financed the construction of the parking facility located under the statehouse grounds in Colum-
hus. SPC revenues, after provision for operation and maintenance of the facility, are pledged to repay the
honds.
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Some OBA revenue bonds finance the costs of office buildings and related facilities for shared use by local
governments. The principal and interest requirements on these bonds are paid from rentals received under
the long-term lease agreements discussed in NOTE 6.

Revenue bonds outstanding, as of June 30, 1990 (December 31, 1989, for the SPC and OTC), net of unam-
ortized discounts as applicable to the proprietary fund types only, were as follows (amounts expresser in
thousands):

Interest Maturing Outstanding
Qrganization Issued Rates _Through Balance
General Long-Term Obligations:
Ohio Turnpike COMMISSION w.euecereercusnsuares 1984 8.5% 1992 $ 4,810
Treasurer of State/
Economic Development ........cccecsresenine 1988-89 6.2-9.7 2001 145,180
SUDBLOLAL c.eevenveeeercrenesresssessiassnsenessnens 149,990
Enterprise:
State Parking COMMISSION ...veveveucsrucansene 1989 6.9-7.3 2008 2,791
Internal Service:
Ohio Building AUthOTItY ..cccoveeermrriesnsenenes 1986 5.5-9.1 2008 53,380
TOAl veveeerersrermereesseernamsassnessasaness $ 206,161

The balance of revenue bonds outstanding for the proprietary fund types, as reported in this note for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1990, include unamortized bond discounts of approximately $3.5 million.

Changes in revenue bonds reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for the year
ended June 30, 1990, are summarized in NOTE 16.

Future bond service requirements for all revenue bonds, as of June 30, 1990 (December 31, 1989, for the
SPC and OTC), were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

General Long-
Term Obligations

Account Group Enterprise Internal Service
Principal Interest  Principal  Interest Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30,

19971 crerereeerersreraresessamssnssessnsane $ 10,845 $9091 % - $ 199 $ 1,883 $ 4,337

1902 .. eorercresreesessreeranssesasessanens 16,395 8,369 199 2,022 4,200

1993 c1ueeererererensseessessranssseneesnsanes 12,430 7,180 95 196 2,175 4,048

1G04 o.c.neeeeisrreereeesneeianessaisanis 13,335 6,331 100 189 2,348 3,881

1905 .. eevrerererressisesssasiesonssssssns 14,255 5414 105 183 2,528 3,695

Thereafter ..c..veeieemerensenensnians 82,730 27,521 2,525 1,890 45,844 31,937

S O P $149.090  $63906 $2,825  $2856  $56,800  $52,098
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In fiscal year 1990, the Treasurer of State advance refunded the Economic Development Bonds, Series
1983, issued for the EDEFD Direct Loan Program. The Treasurer of State issued $147.7 million in revenue
refunding bonds to advance refund $149.7 million of revenue bonds. The net proceeds of $143.4 million
plus an additional $25.7 million of existing monies from the debt service reserve were used to purchase
U.S. guvernment securities, which were placed in irrevocable trusts with an agent to provide for all future
debt service payments of the refunded principal. As a result, the refunded bonds are no longer considered

During fiscal year 1990, the SPC deposited $575,000 with a fiscal agent for the purpose of defeasance of
the 4% Underground Parking Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 1963. The funds deposited, together with
interest earned thereon, were sufficient to pay the balance of $561,000 in outstanding bonds and all other
sums payable to enable early redemption of said bonds before maturity,

NOTE 13 NO COMMITMENT DEBT (not included in the financial Statements)

The State of Ohio by action of the General Assembly created various financing authorities for the expressed
purpose of making available to non-profit and, in some cases, for-profit private entities lower cost sources
of capital financing for facilities and projects found to be for a public purpose. Fees are assessed to recover

the property financed. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of acquired property transfers to the entity
served by the bond issuance. This debt is not deemed to constitute a debt of the State or pledge of the faith
and credit of the State. Accordingly, these bonds are not reflected in the accompanying financial state-

ments.

As of June 30, 1990 (December 31, 1989, for the Ohio Air Quality Development Authority and the Ohio
Water Development Authority), revenue bonds, net of advance refunded bonds of $654 million, and notes
outstanding, as reported in the following organizations' financial statements that represented "no cormmit-
ment" debt for the State were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Qutstanding

Organization Amount
Ohio Departinent of Development/Economic Development

FINRNGING DIVISION o.cooecoovevvrerissssoncsireeesssnsnsssmneresessssssssssss oo $ 37,690
Ohio Air Quality Development AUthOTIY ..ooeieeeve S ererenans 1,646,905
Ohio Housing Finance AGENCY oo Siererans T 2,218,360

(net of discount)
Ohio Water Development AUhOIiY ... oo 804,319

(net of discount)

POt $ 4,707,274

———
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NOTE 14 CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

As of June 30, 1990, $14.8 million and $23.5 million of obligations (including accrued interest and net of
discount) were payable from the Ohio Data Network and the Telecommunications internal service funds,
respectively, for the purchase of data-processing equipment and software, and a telecommunications system
upgrade, financed through the sale of certificates of participation.

Under the certificate of participation arrangement, the State is required to make payments that approximate
the interest and principal payments made by a trustee to certificate holders.

Future certificate of participation commitments, as of June 30, 1990, were as follows (amounts expressed
in thousands):

Principal Interest Total
Year ending June 30,
TOOT ouveveeeremerereressesesestsssssssssssassasisssnsasisassasaces $ 7,715 $ 2,711 $ 10,426
1OO2 oveereeeeeeressrenessssssesstsasestansrarsssnsas s tan st 7,990 2,169 10,159
L1 < JR TP R TR R R R R L 8,290 1,585 9,875
1O ooooeeeeeeissesessassssesrsssssasasstansasasssesasnsassssssssssess 7,000 972 7,972
1OOB .nveeerereeesssssessesssersassassiaissssssansasasasasssnsssiesss 7,255 290 7.545
TOAl ouveevemereesnsssesssesersnsassssssnsasasasasansususssasssses $ 38,250 $ 7,727 $ 45977

In November 1985, the State defeased outstanding Series 1983 certificates of participation related to the
microwave telecommunications system, by placing the proceeds of the new Series 1985 certificates in an
;rrevocable trust to provide for all future service payments on the Series 1983 certificates. Accordingly,
$7.8 million of the Series 1983 certificates, which are not included in the State's financial statements, were
outstanding, as of June 30, 1990.

Certificates of participation obligations are reported in the internal service funds as "Certificates of
Participation” in the amount of $25.5 million and as "Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets” in the
amount of $12.8 million.

NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

As of June 30, 1990, other general long-term obligations of the State reported in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

Compensated absences [0\ [T $ 159,571
Lease agreements (B) .cc.coveeniiimmsrmensenssmnsnasences 8,698
JUAGMENLS (C) coevvssrmrsmmsssenisssssnsssmasssmsssansssnessseess 180,162
Litigation Liabilities (C) «coverveeresssersinsnssesscensniensess 8,703
Workers' Compensation Obligation [15) JERe 314,556
Employee Severance Anticipation

Compensation Plan (E) coveeerererenencncsssnsmmnsssecnsees 7874

Total Other General Long-Term Obligations ........ $ 679,564
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

\. Compensated Absences

Generally, employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of 3.1 hours every two weeks for the first five years of
employment, up to a maximum rate of 7.7 hours every two weeks after 20 years of employment. Employ-
€€s may accrue a maximum of three years vacation leave credit. At termination or retirement, employees
are paid at their full rate 100 percent of unused vacation leave, personal leave, and compensatory time and
50 percent of unused sick leave.

In order to lessen the impact of terminal leave pay on a given State agency's budget, an accrued leave
funding program was instituted by law in 1982. State agencies must contribute a percentage of gross
payroll to a common pool of resources from which terminal leave expenditures/expenses are paid. The
amount of cash equity with Treasurer and related interest receivable available to satisfy terminal pay claims
at June 30, 1990, was $46 million. These and related assets are reported as part of the Payroll Withholding
and Fringe Benefits Agency Fund.

The compensated absence liability for proprietary funds is reported net of their portion of accrued leave
funding and is reflected in accrued liabilities. The compensated absence liability for governmental funds
is also reported net of their portion of the accrued leave funding and is reported as part of the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group.

The gross compensated absences liability, as of June 30, 1990, was $221 million of which $19 million is al-
locable to the proprietary funds and $202 million is allocable to the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
ount Group. The net (after reduction of the $46 million) compensated absence liability, as of June 30,
1990, was $175 million, of which $15 million is reported in the proprietary funds and $160 million is
reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

8. Lease Agreements

I'he State leases oftice buildings and office and computer equipment. Although the lease terms vary, most
lcases are renewable subject to biennial appropriations by the General Assembly. If the likelihood of the
xercise of a fiscal funding clause in the lease agreement is in the judgment of management remote, then the
lease is considered noncancelable for financial reporting purposes and is reported as a fund expenditure/
¢xpense for operating leases or in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group or appropriate pro-
prictary fund types for capital leases.

\ssets acquired through capital leasing are valued at the lower of fair market value or the present value of
he fiture minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease. Capital lease obligations for the proprie-
lary fund types are reported in those funds as long-term obligations. The related assets and depreciation of
hese assets are included in the proprietary funds. Capital lcase obligations for the governmental fund types
re reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group and the related assets are reported in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group.

Operating leases (leases on assets not recorded in the combined balance sheet) contamn various renewal
options as well as sonie purchase options.
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Any escalation clauses, sublease rentals, and contingent rents are considered immaterial to the future
minimum lease payments and current rental expenditures. Operating lease payments are recorded as expen-
ditures or expenses of the related funds when paid or incurred.

The total operating lease expenditures/expenses for fiscal year 1990 were approximately $86 million.
Future minimum lease commitments for operating leases and capital leases judged to be noncancelable,
as of June 30, 1990, were as follows (amounts expressed in thousands):

CAPITAL LEASES
General Internal
Operating Long-Term Service
Leases Obligations Funds Total
Fiscal year ending June 30,

JOOT woreresesisnsssrsssnsnsssasassaasassensaanssnessass $ 17,722 $ 3,937 $ 5,512 $ 9,449
102 ovverererresssassssanssssssnanensusnsasusssisisnes 8,675 3,116 4,029 7,145
D11 IR R R R 5,984 1,370 2,934 4,304
FOOG o.vveeeererraeesssseresnessasssanasasasanansesassses 5,038 1,107 2,569 3,676
JOOB .eerecressrerersasssasasssasasamsasasasaansesaiees 3,147 333 1,551 1,884
THETEARET c.eeveerererrrrssesussssnsssasssmansnsacenes 2,581 12 - 12
Total minimum lease payments......coeeeee $ 43,147 9,875 16,595 26,470
Less: Amount representing interest....... (1,177) (1,528) (2,705)
Present value of net minimum lease
PAYMENES wovsarersessessrsssssssssmmmsssesisimssssssess $ 8,698 $15,067 $23,765

As of June 30, 1990, the State had the following fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation for proprie-
tary funds) under capital leases, which are reported under w Accrued Liabilities" in the proprietary funds

(amounts expressed in thousands):

General
Fixed Internal
Assets Service Total
EQUIPMENE 1.rvvuorussesrsssemsssssssssrasessesesss $19,704 $16,063 $35,767
VEHICIES vevivrreeracaireranssisnsamsasassaesasneanes 298 -—-- 298
TORAl vveeercrieeeressessnonsarsasasnensusassasonses $20,002 $16,063 $36,065

pee————}

Amortization expense for the proprietary funds is included with depreciation expense.

C. Judgments and Litigation Liabilities

The Ohio Department of Education has been involved with several school desegregation court cases filed
against the State by various local boards of education. In cases where the judgment went against the State,
the courts decided that the State was responsible for sharing in all past and future desegregation costs. As
of June 30, 1990, the State was responsible for an estimated $180 million liability for past desegregation
costs, which is recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

For information on the State's loss contingencies arising from pending litigation, see NOTE 21.
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGAT, TONS (Continued)

D. Workers' Compensation Obligation

The State is permitted to pay its workers' compensation liability on a terminal funding (pay-as-you-go)
basis. As a result, the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund recognized an unbilled premium receivable
for the State's portion of its actuarially determined liability for compensation, which is recorded in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group in the amount of $315 million.

E. Employee Severance Anticipation Compensation Plan

represent the expected long-term rate of return on the assets restricted for the payment of deferred prize
awards. Once established for a particular deferred prize award, the interest rate does not change with
changes in the expected long-term rate of return. The difference between the present value and gross
amount of the obligations is amortized into income over the terms of the obligations using the interest
method.

The present value of future payments for unpaid prize awards, as of June 30, 1990, is summarized as fol-
lows (amounts expressed in thousands);

Year Ending June 30,
109 et $ 92,941
1992 ettt 92,674
1993 e 92,359
1994 et 92,344
1995 ot 91,484
TRICAME ... 1,066,347
TOM oot 1,528,149
Unamortized DiSCOUNL ........ovvvvvess o (680,325)
Net Prize Liability ..........ccervvosorsso $ 847,824

close of a game for instant games. After the expiration of the statutory one-year period, the prize liability
is reduced for the unclaimed prizes.
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NOTE 15 OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

G. Reserve for Compensation

The Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund provides benefits to employees for losses
sustained from job-related injury, disease, or death. The Bureau has computed a reserve for compensation,
as of December 31, 1989, of $9.46 billion. The reserve, which includes estimates for reported claims and
claims incurred but not reported, is reported as "Workers' Compensation Benefits Payable.”

NOTE 16 CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Changes in general long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 1990, are summarized as follows
(amounts expressed in thousands):

Other
General Special General
Obligation Obligation Revenue Long-Term
Bonds Bonds Bonds Obligations
(NOTE 10) (NOTE 11) (NOTE 12) (NOTE 15) Total

Balance, as of July 1, 1989 cocccveiincrene $ 723050 $ 3,286,844 $ 164,490 $ 678,377 $4,852,761
Additions:

DEDL ISSUES ..veveessensessesasasansmsnsssarssssases 120,000 155,000 147,685 422,685

Compensated ADSENCES ..ccorrrrerersssanssns - - - 17,970 17,970

increase in Lease Obligations .............. ---- e --e- 3,000 3,000

Increase in JUdgments .....ceecememeneases - - - 17,551 17,551

Increase in Workers' Compensation

ObHGALION w.vveunesensisirsasssunsasmensnssasensess e e -en 21,556 21,556

Increase in Contingent Liabilities .......... - R -—-- 8,703 8,703
Total AAItioNS ..ccenesisusminssssucasusnenensense 120,000 155,000 147,685 68,780 491,465
Deductions:

Debt Retirements, Terminations, and

DEfEASANCES cvecvireeerssssrsssrsnssanssonsasss 135,875 174,979 162,185 - 473,039

Decrease in Lease Obligations ........... - — - 4,084 4,084

Decrease in Judgments .....ccceriemersesnens ---- .- e 38,005 38,005

Decrease in Contingent Liabilities ........ 25,504 25,504
Total DEdUCHONS ...cevrreriesssnensussranacasese: 135,875 174,979 162,185 67,593 540,632
Balance, as of June 30, 1990 .....cocuerence $ 707,175 § 3266,865 $ 149,990 $ 679,564  $4,803,594

Fiscal year 1990 additions to the special obligation bonds include bond discounts of approximately $1.2
million. The $3 million increase in lease obligations is considered to be immaterial for the General Fund,
and therefore, is not reflected in the "Other Financing Sources (Uses)" section of the General Fund's oper-
ating statement.

NOTE 17 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The State offers its employees and elected officials a deferred compensation plan created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 that is reported in the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund. The
plan, available to any public employee, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary and the related
tax liability until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.
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NOTE 17 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (Continued)

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts,
and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the

Public Employees Deferred Compensation Board have no liability for losses under the plan with exception
of fraud or wrongful taking.

The State believes that it is unlikely that the assets will be used to satisfy the claims of general creditors in
the future and no assets have been used in the past to satisfy such claims.

The $265 million balance reported on the Combined Balance Sheet—All Fund Types and Account Groups
as "Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan" Tepresents State assets actually held by the plan administra-
tor. Plan assets are carried at market value,

NOTE 18 ENTERPRISE FUNDS

A. Segment Information

The State has five enterprise funds, which provide for state parking facilities, liquor sales, lottery sales,
workers' compensation insurance services, and a tuition guarantee program.

Segment information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1990, unless otherwise noted, was as follows
(¢ mounts expressed in thousands):

State
Parking Ohio Workers' Tuition Total
Commission  Liquor Lottery  Compensation Trust Enterprise

(12/31/89)  Control Commission (12/31/89) Authority Funds

Operating revenues............... $ 2,154 $347551 $1,704649 ¢ 2,334,788 $ 746 $ 4,389,888
Depreciation and

amortization ....................... 195 960 66,820 18,710 86,685
Operating income (loss) ....... 1,023 71,820 630,055 582,032 (548) 1,284,382
Operating transfers-out......... - 65,032 644,267 ——-- - 709,299
Net income (loss).................. 1,385 6,728 (14,212) 582,032 (548) 575,385
Fixed asset additions ............ 1,602 1,165 11,471 50,677 26 64,941
Fixed asset disposals ........... 19 451 209 --e- 679
Net working capital ............... 7,081 13,451 53,764 2,081,214 (574) 2,154,936
Increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents .......... 235 5,702 (239,978) 6,866 1,796 (225,379)
Total assets ... 12,990 38,612 942,375 8,850,162 1,826 9,845,965

Bonds and other noncurrent

liabilities payable from

operating revenues............. 2,791 848,760 9,464,669 --- 10,316,220
Total equity (deficits) ............ 9,167 17,570 77,719 (1,191,029) (548) (1,087,121)
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NOTE 18 ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

B. Workers' Compensation Fund

The financial statements of the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation and the Industrial Commission of
Ohio (Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1989, were
cxamined by their independent auditors, who issued their report on their examination on September 7, 1990.
As discussed in the audit report, the reserve for compensation is based on historical claims experience data
and the reserve for compensation adjustment expenses is based, in part, on the reserve for compensation. In
addition, legislative changes, recent court decisions, tWo new administrative procedures, and other factors
may result in the reserve for compensation liability varying significantly from the amount reported in the
financial statements of the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund. Furthermore, the ultimate outcome of
pending litigation and other uncertainties could not be determined, so no provision for any liability or
adjustments that may result upon adjudication or resolution of these matters has been recognized in the
financial statements of the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund. For additional information, refer to the
separate audit report.

NOTE 19 FUND EQUITY — OTHER RESERVES

Details of "Reserved for Pension Benefits and Other" in the accompanying financial statements, as of
June 30, 1990, in the govemmental and pension trust funds follow (amounts expressed in thousands):

Reserved for Pension Benefits and Other:

Pension
Special Capital Trust
General Revenue Projects (12/31/89) Total
Cash Equity with
TrEaASUIE c.covvmereensersansesess $ $ 2,700 $ $ $ 2,700
Other Assets:
Prepayments ......c.eoeeeeses 8,678 313 —eer - 8,991
Advance Payments to
Subrecipients ........cce- - 3,349 aeen -e-- 3,349
INVENLOTIES .oovveesesersanansnesss 2,834 40,501 - —-e- 43,335
Student Loan
Guarantee Program ........ —een 15,951 --e- wenn 15,951
Capital OUtIaY ...coeeenseneeess 18,036 18,036
Pension Benefits .......c.ceee - ---- o 195,471 195,471
TOAl ceeerrercesrmmserssnsanesee $ 11,512 $ 62,814 $ 18,036 $ 195,471 $ 287,833

Reserved retained earnings for the Enterprise Fund, as of Sune 30, 1990, are provided for insurance claims
relating to the Workers' Compensation Fund in the amount of $151.1 million and for the payment of
deferred lottery prizes relating to the Ohio Loutery Commission Fund in the amount of $8.7 million.
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NOTE20 RETAINED EARNINGS DEFICIT

A retained earnings deficit of $2.16 billion is reported for the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund, as
of December 31, 1989, This represents a 21.2 percent reduction in the deficijt since December 31, 1988.

A retained eamnings deficit of $548 thousand is reported for the Tuition Trust Authority Enterprise Fund, as
of June 30, 1990. The deficjt relates to the incurrence of program start-up costs, Management anticipates
these costs will be recovered through increased participation in the tujtion credit program.

NOTE 21 CONTINGENCIES

with the Attorney General, likely to have a materia] adverse effect on the financial position of any of the
State's fund types and account groups.

In instances when the unfavorable outcome of pending litigation has been assessed to be likely, liabilities
are recorded in the financial statements. As of June 30, 1990, $8.7 million in liabilities has been recorded
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for this purpose.

The Staie of Ohio recejves significant financial assistance from the federa] government in the form of grants
and entitlements, including non-cash programs (which are not included in the general purpose financial
statements), Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the
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NOTE 22 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to June 30, 1990 (December 31, 1989, for the Ohio Water Development Authority), the State
issued the following major debt (amounts expressed in thousands):

Net
Interest
Organization Date of Issue Cost Amount Type of Debt

Commissioners of the Sinking Fund:
Highway Obligations, Series P receerrenenensosees June 15, 1990 6.42% $ 75,000 General Obligation

Ohio Public Facilities Commission:
Higher Education Facilities,

Series 1 - 1990A cocuiiirisesienmmmsnsensueemessensess August 14, 1990 6.86 115,000 Special Obligation
Ohio Water Development Authority .oooeeeseesns January 1990 6.50-6.55" 15,000 No Commitment
TOLA! .oreevnrererensesnasnssssonsnsmsssassaseseasasnasnnssesess $205,000

posnmmmmmE——————

* Nominal Interest Rates

The Ohio Building Authority advance refunded the State Transportation Facilities Variable Rate Demand
Bonds, 1987 Series A. The advance refunding was completed in September 1990, when the State Trans-
portation Facilities Refunding Bonds, 1990 Series A, were issued in the amount of $49.2 million. The
refunding bonds are special obligations of the State.

In September 1990, the Ohio Building Authority converted the following bonds from variable interest rates
to fixed rates in accordance with the bond trust agreements (amounts expressed in thousands):

Amount

1987 Series A (Local Jail e e J—— $22,700
1989 Series A (Local Jail D e [P 19,500
R e R e e S ) $42,200

Subsequent to December 31, 1989, the retained earnings deficit for the Bureau of Workers' Compensation
Enterprise Fund increased approximately $381 million as a result of net realized and unrealized investment
losses on investments bought, sold, and held through October 31, 1990.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted
to expenditure for designated purposes.

The Community and Economic Development Fund accounts for programs administered by
the Department of Development, the Ohio Housing Finance Agency, the Ohio Air Quality De-
velopment Authority, the Ohjo Water Development Authority, and other various State agencies,
which are designed to assure the efficient use of resources for the State's economic growth and
development.

The Health Fund accounts for public health programs primarily administered by the Department
of Health, which promote the prevention and treatment of diseases and illnesses through tech-
nical assistance, health education, and research.

The Education Fund accounts for programs administered by the Department of Education, the
Ohio Board of Regents, and other various State agencies, which prescribe the State's minimum

The Student Loan Commission Fund accounts for the Federal Guaranteed Student Loan
Program and other programs administered by the Ohio Student Loan Commission, which pro-
vide financial assistance to eligible individuals attending higher educational institutions,




SPECIAL REVENUE F UNDS (Continued)

The Highway Safety Fund accounts for public safety programs administered by the Department
of Highway Safety, which are designed to enforce traffic-related laws for the purpose of reduc-
ing accidents, deaths, injuries, and property damages on Ohio highways.

The Highway Operating Fund accounts for programs administered by the Department of
Transportation, which provide for the planning and design, construction, and maintenance of
Ohio's highways and roads.

The Ohio Turnpike Commission Fund accounts for the general operations of the Ohio Turn-
pike Commission, which is authorized by the Ohio General Assembly to construct, maintain,
repair, police, and operate turnpike projects at such locations approved by the State.

The Natural Resources Fund accounts for environmental programs administered by the De-
partment of Natural Resources, the Environmental Protection Agency, and other various State
agencies, which promote, protect, and manage the State's natural resources and environment.

The Wildlife and Waterway Safety Fund accounts for programs administered by the Depart-
ment of Natural Resources' Divisions of Wildlife and Watercraft, which promote, protect, and

manage the State's wildlife and waterways and which provide technical assistance and education
to the public.

The Revenue Distribution Fund accounts for tax relief and aid to local government programs,
which derive funding from tax and other revenues levied, collected, and designated by the State
for these purposes.

The Local Transportation Improvements Fund accounts for the Local Transportation Im-
provement Program administered by the Ohio Public Works Commission, which provides grants
to local governments for highway, road, and bridge construction.

The Other Fund accounts for administrative and regulatory activities of various departmental
programs and other miscellaneous State activities.
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(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . .. . .. . .

Cash with Custodian . . . . . . .

InyestmenicHuNPASIVENG N EUEINTIR. 0 o 0
B o gt 3y o SCERe S LT - S Ui
70 ok Sl N MR MG S

DuekliomiOeriEunos MR SRS RS E S
o - . v R RURN b T (i

Restricted Assets:

UTECTEDNT o o ol VARRCHE T R A ST e
OiogassCRRbal P e ST AR

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

ficeodnisgPayablosRROMIQ @ LT i 4 Vet
Accruadlliabilies) i whe Ut eyl ik AT gl
DoeltofCtherdRundsl. . g 0. o L r . o B
T A S S S R R

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Rl Hloged's 100 teys SRSl S
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable . . . . . . . .
LISy G il s B o N SRR G A

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

COMMUNITY

AND ECONOMIC HUMAN
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES HEALTH
$ 104,335 3 50,420 $ 17.205
1213 43 =
31,371 — =3
2,693 21,231 9,662
184,001 = =
3,951 348 48
730 225 1,691
6,794 — o
S 335,088 $ 72,267 $ 28,606
$ 10,622 $ 18,717 $ 10,881
6,073 4,310 2285
824 829 281
o 6,734 3.724
180 12,181 —
17,699 42,771 17,171
75,915 86,421 5,650
172,892 = —
2,700 oy e
65,882 (56,925) 5,785
317,389 29,496 11,435
$ 335,088 $ 72,267 $ 28,606




MENTAL HEALTH
AND

EMPLOYMENT STUDENT LOAN HIGHWAY HIGHWAY
RETARDATION SERVICES EDUCATION COMMISSION SAFETY OPERATING
$ 43375 § 28986 § 206,881 88 go,006 § 321,661
— 1,067 12 3,322 — —
— 8,779 2,293 19,326 — —
— — — — — 45,584
23,030 2,236 30,316 9,326 904 17,630
— — 37,067 15,627 — —
462 8,511 1,356 1,374 416 2,555
333 61 1,123 — 10,487 3,712
— 846 — — — 36,384
— 3,349 — 6,730 299 —
$ 67,200 $ 53,835 § 279,048 55,793 81,112 § 427,526
$ 1,379 § 11,269 § 1,384 257 3165 § 76,073
16,129 3,219 29,544 10,348 5,937 15,563
752 123 237 13 1,939 482
— — 1,339 6,875 — 23,722
— — 22,717 6,794 — —
18,260 14,611 55,221 24,287 11,041 115,860
5,072 4,014 149,883 503 23,709 789,416
— — 13,846 15,038 — —
— 4,195 — 15,965 299 36,384
43,868 31,015 60,098 — 46,063 (514,134)
48,940 39,224 223,827 31,506 70,071 311,666
$ 67,200 $ 53,835 §__ 279,048 55,793 g1,112 §_ 427,526

(continued)
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(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . ., ... . . .
Cas_h with Custodian . ., ... . . . ..
LU CEGTETL D It o At e R

Receivables:

LTI by o o e et e, AT
Intergovernmentay . . . ., ,, .
LR NS . S T SR ) e
ST BT 58y o e o, 1 SRS o LN
Due from Other Funas . . ... .. = .
Imvenioriag PR, ST MR T L e

Restricted Assets:

PG ok o ey 1 Sl S s
OloigAsseel il | A T TR Y

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

AccountalRayapiel kT LW e e
Accrued Lisbiles . , ., .., . . Tt
Due lo\OthersFundg %, v, 4 ol T T TR
DeforrsdiReverues o v.", B [ | UL g

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Enciimbrances®, . . .. o M g, 0 LT
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable . . . ., .. .
R ™ = SR L

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

.........

.........

.........

WILDLIFE AND

OHIO TURNPIKE NATURAL WATERWAY
COMMISSION RESOURCES SAFETY

$ = $ 147219 g 24,938
708 615 17

1,791 - -
— 1,016 607
— 1,758 1,917

- 186 -
1,705 814 177
- 518 160

3,271 -~ -

17,885 - -

1,776 — —
3 27,136  § 152,126 27,816
$ 732§ 4182 g 983
3,098 2,033 1,234
1,034 498 36

- 386 -

— 117 —
4,864 7,216 2,253
— 44,469 2571

- 144 —

3,271 — —
19,001 100,297 22,992
22,272 144,910 25,563
$ 27,136  $ 152,126  § 27,816




LOCAL
TRANSPORTATION

REVENUE
DISTRIBUTION IMPROVEMENTS OTHER TOTAL

146275 § 44,846 72989 $ 1,278,224
T = 287 7,284

=3 s = 63,560
141,438 — 1,142 189,787
— o 2.374 123,077

== —a 39 236,920

184 350 227 22,478
6,758 315 899 27,012
= = . 40,501

= i == 17,885

— . o 18,948
294,655 $ 45511 77,957 $ _ 2,025,676
o $ 288 3751 § 143,683
169,691 =3 3,240 272,724
162 § 273 7,483
2,821 =] 1,969 47,570
45,330 ol ol 87,319
218,004 288 9,233 558,779
= _ 22,839 1,210,462

= — 37 201,957

ol = == 62,814
76,651 45,223 45,848 (8,336)
76,651 45,223 68,724 1,466,897
294,655 $ 45,511 77,957 $ 2025676

n




STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT O
CHANGES IN FUND BALAN
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR

(amounts expressed in thousands)

AREVENUES:

Income Taxes

Sales Taxes

Corporate and Public Utility Taxes
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes

Other Taxes

Licenses, Permits and Fees
Sales, Services and Charges
Federal Government

EXPENDITURES:

CURRENT:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education

Higher Education. . . . . . . ..

Public Assistance and Medicaid
Health and Human Services
Justice and Public Protection

Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . ., . . .

Transportation

Community and Eco
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
CAPITAL oUTLAY

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF RE VENUES
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
SOURCES OVER (UNDE
FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (as restated) .

'NCREASE FOR CHANGES IN INVENT ORIES

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 .

nomic Development

OVER (UNDER)

AND OTHER FINANCING
R) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

F REVENUES, EXPENDI TURES AND
CES
ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

COMMUNITY
AND ECONOMIC HUMAN
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES HEALTH
$ = =i —
— 5,305 5,834
36,126 — 54
135,165 491,559 160,090
29,883 44,881 17,691
201,174 541,745 183,669
- 248 —
- 388,919 —
- 162,285 185,316
54 6,332 —
9 — —
165,111 — —
4 12 —
— 8,425 —
165,178 566,221 185,316
35,996 (24,476) (1,647)
5,164 3,802 7,400
(4,890) (7,257) (1)
274 (3,455) 7,399
36,270 (27,931) 5,752
281,119 57,427 5683
$ 317389 29496 g 11,435




MENTAL HEALTH

AND EMPLOYMENT STUDENT LOAN HIGHWAY HIGHWAY
RETARDATION SERVICES EDUCATION COMMISSION SAFETY OPERATING
$ = $ = $ = $ = $ = $ =
— — — — — 261,071
— — — — 33,637
1 — 248 — 67,858 5,158
- — 381 3,302 5,879 1,617
204,357 270,978 456,879 46,114 5,442 407,917
34,310 54,152 17,489 2,259 11,553 54,443
238,668 325,130 474,997 51,675 90,732 763,843
— 1,052,546 - — —
— — 4,667 67,953 — —_
237,809 308,409 217 — 4,187 —
— — 3,321 — 169,159 —
— — — — - 1,010,486
— —— 6 — — —
4 — — — 1 —
— 1,704 599 489 1,423 —
237,813 310,113 1,061,356 68,442 174,770 1,010,486
855 15,017 (586,359) (16,767) . (84,038) (246,643)
—_ 1,307 645,673 — 90,936 391,904
(12,813) (1,000) (12,017) — (406) (101,410)
(12,813) 307 633,656 — 90,530 290,494
(11,958) 15,324 47,297 (16,767) 6,492 43,851
60,898 23,900 176,530 48,273 63,579 264,178
— — — — — 3,637
$ 48940 $ 39224 § 223827 § 31,506 § 70,071 §___ 311,666

(continued)




STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)
{continued)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes ... ... . . .
Sales Taxes . ..... . .. .

Corporate and Public Unility Rl axesgie 1 S TS Sepss =

Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes A0
Other Taxes .. ...... .. .
Licenses, Permits and Fees . .
Sales, Services and Charges .
Federal Government. . . . .

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education . ... .. . . . .

Higher Education. . . ., . . .
Public Assistance and Medicaid
Health and Human Services . .
Justice and Public Protection .

Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . ., . . . .

Transportation. . . .. .. . . .

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . .

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating Transfers-in. . . .
Operating Transfers-out . . . . .

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES . . . .. ..

WILDLIFE AND

OHIO TURNPIKE NATURAL WATERWAY
COMMISSION RESOURCES SAFETY
$ = $ == $ =
— 10,893 —
- — 4,912
— 10,484 —
88,683 30,482 25,616
— 1,003 53
— 44,157 7,948
2,364 22,197 3,750
91,047 119,216 42,279
— 736 —_
- 80,916 33,635
47,549 — —
— 2511 —
— 37,318 —
— 7 —
—_ — 3,273
47,549 121,482 36,908
43,498 (2,266) 5,371
- - 503
(44,331) (1,155) —_
(44,331) (1,155) 503
(833) (3,421) 5,874
23,105 148,331 19,689
$ 22272 g 144,910 § 25,563




LOCAL

REVENUE TRANSPORTATION
DISTRIBUTION IMPROVEMENTS OTHER TOTAL

$ 456,723 $ = $ 2,719 459,442
175,257 == 10,530 185,787
72,364 = 349 83,606
690.653 —— 1,304 957,940
7,957 — 15,079 67,157
288,865 = 49,010 567,060

— — 7,086 55,501

= = 23,320 2,253,926

2,674 2,322 31,745 331,713
1,694,493 2,322 141,142 4,962,132

— = = 1,052,546

== = 222 73,090

— == == 388,919

= — 103 898,326

) — 34,812 214,414

== == 21 114,572

== o 1,290 1,059,325

== — 77,619 80,145

11,889 — 20,903 235,221
1,211,837 — 20 1,211,879
— 887 60 16,860
1,223,726 887 135,050 5,345,297
470,767 1,435 6,092 (383,165)
2,933 43,788 7,037 1,200,447
(447,108) o (590) (632,978)
(444,175) 43,788 6,447 567,469
26,592 45,223 12,539 184,304
50,059 = 56,185 1,278,956

— - = 3,637

$ 76,651 $ 45,223 $ 68,724 1,466,897




STATE OF OHIO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
{{OMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

{amounts expressed in thousands)

URES AND CHANGES
(BUDGETARY BASIS)

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
(UNFAVORABLE)

HEVENUES:
Income Taxes
Sales Taxes .. ... .. ..
Corporate and Pubiic Utility Taxes
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes 0. Bt
Other Taxes
Licenses, Permits and Fees
Sdles, Services and Charges
fieasialiGovernment SRR 1 g LIUERRE Lo
OTTiro & ot W it - o e pb s P

7

g1

136,188
62,220

1

g1

136,188
62,220

$

198,909

198,909

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education
Higher Educaton. . . . . . . . .
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . ... . . . . . . . .
Health and Human Services . ..., . . . .~ 1"
Justice and Public Protection
Environmental Protection and
Transportation. . . . ... .. . .

Community and Economic Development
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AT L OUTL AV SN o = S Sade”
LSSV ICEA T Y Bl o SRR

e [
~N

145

306
257,843
4

- W
NECYRRN

209,605
4

258,795

210,069

£XCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES

(59,886)

(11,160)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers-in. . . . .

(USES):

15,110

15,110

15,110

15,110

=XCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
WD OTHER FINANCING USES. . ... .. . .

'NHESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES

(DEFICITS), JULY 1 . 0. 0 el 8 .
{/NRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND

BALANCES (DEFICITS), UNE 30 . . . . .

3,950
533

$ 4,483
e ———— =

$

48,726




HUMAN SERVICES HEALTH

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFA VORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ == $ = $ 1 $ s $ w $ =
5.097 5,097 - 11,859 11,859 -
— — - 1,994 1,994 —
493,755 493,755 — 158,411 158,411 —
49,586 49,586 — 20,460 20,460 —
548,438 548,438 — 192,724 192,724 —
1,355 747 608 —_ — —
434,378 398,984 35,394 — — —
181,619 177,700 3,919 204,063 192,722 11,341
5857 5,698 159 - — —
— — - 503 - 503
— - - 78 51 27
12 12 — — — —
18,150 17,594 556 — — —
641,371 600,735 40,636 204,644 192,773 11,871
(92,933) (52,297) 40,636 (11,920) (49) 11,871
15,431 15,431 — 1,001 1,001 —_
(22,664) (22,664) — (974) (974) —
5,251 5,251 — 1,062 1,062
(1,982) (1,982) — 1,089 1,089 —
$ (94,915) (54,279) $ 40636 § (10,831) 1,040 § 11,871
11,782 8249
$ (42,497) $ 9,289

(continued)




STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(@mounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUES:

Jeonolliaxes S RS VT ISR ] B
Sofes Taxesh L TR T ASE . T
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . ... ... .. .. .
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes .. ... . . ..~ "''"""
Othordlaxes iy = o0 e SROENE LS

Licenses, Permits and (LS o SN Do nlieer Ml =

Sales, Services and Chargesiog.!.- 3., . M4s W8
FederalyGovernment SR BNe = B L0 T aiagE

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . ... .. . .
Higher Education. . . . .. . . . ' Tt
Fublic Assistance and Medicaid . . . ... . . . . . . . |
Health and Human Services . . ... ... ... . . . ..
Justice and Public Protection . .. ... . . .. . . . . .|
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . . .
Transportatiogies,. N . o . S Wi, LT

Comrunity and Economic Development . . . . . .. . ..
INTERCOVERNMENTAL NG yieiim i S ) " o
CARITACROUTEATERS . WL T+ SR Sage = & i Tkt
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . F GO0 ‘a0 o I E RSP, DR

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . ..

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in. . .. ... .. . .

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES. . . ... . . . .

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(OEFiCITS), yuLy 1 ... T

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND
BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . . .. . = &

(BUDGETARY BASIS)

MENTAL HEALTH AND RE TARDATION

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
s — s i s -
1 1 5
366,652 366,652 =
33,470 33,470 —
400,123 400,123 —
164,196 148,339 15,857
253,969 234,345 19,624
4 4 b
418,169 382,688 35,481
(18,046) 17,435 35,481
21,500 21,500 e
(32,813) (32,813) -
3,204 3,204 =
(8,109) (8,109) =
$ (26,155) 9326 ¢ 35,481
o —_— 301
26,744
$ 36,070




EMPLOYMENT SERVICES EDUCATION
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFA VORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ < $ == $ == $ i = $ =
5 5 — 248 248 —
24 24 — 381 381 -
225,880 225,880 — 466,679 466,679 —
52,260 52,260 — 27,564 27,564 —
278,169 276,169 — 494,872 494,872 —
— — - 1,121,618 1,114,305 7.313
=B 3 — 4,899 4,756 143
300,194 251,084 49,110 1,295 1,009 286
— — — 10,328 8,121 2,207
g - — 10 6 4
1 1 — — — —
— — — 2218 820 1,398
300,195 251,085 49,110 1,140,368 1,129,017 11,351
(22,026) 27,084 49,110 (645,496) (634,145) 11,351
— — 709,817 709,817 —
— — — (65,920) (65,920) —
622 622 5,200 5,200 —
622 622 — 649,097 649,097 —
$ (21,404) 27,706 $ 49,110 § 3,601 14,952 § 11,351
(2,094) 8,628
$ 25,612 23,580

(continuea)




STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990
(amounts expressed in thousands)
{continued)

STUDENT LOAN COMMISSION

BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
(UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES:
GBI VEC RO 1 S A R ] $
CHLEE TELE] o Bug sl » o O i S et
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . ...... . . . .
Motor Vehicle Fuel e W e s
Ol UBED 5 o o o's e b i e A
Licenses, Permits and GOCSERRaT § " Segm
Sales, Services and ChalgesgiSsate s ' ¥ Saa™
figderalj Govemment:s SRR Ly |G LR S

SRERE
[$,]
&

Q
s
S
I
N

SRR
[$,]
&

ol

N

$

TOIALIREVENUESSTN e B od o) il i 9,572

9,572

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . ... ... .
Higherseducation. . TP BISENET L MBS
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . ... . . . . . .
Health and Human Services . ... ... ... . ... . |
Justice and Public Prolectiong 2o 5 S8 g PARNL ) e
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . .
Jiosporiation Bl Vs R LARIS e

-
(=]

e I T (TR

Q

Community and Economic Development . . . .. . . . .
INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . .. . ' [/ """
DL T od 8 B 6 hOis I S
s sr VICE e S R LY S s R

-
(]

FYET e

-~

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . . . 10,730

10,011

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . .. . . . . (1,158)

(439)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in. . .. ... . ... . ==
Operating Transfersout. . . ... . .~~~ """ —
Encumbrance Reversions. . ... . T 95

o |1

5

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) . . . . . . .. 95

95

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES. . ... . .. . .. $ (1,063)
=l

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEAICITS), JUBY 15 Ry e

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNA TED BUDGETARY FUND
BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . . . . == S

(344)

300

$ 644

719

II“




HIGHWAY SAFETY HIGHWAY OPERATING

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ - s — s — s - s — s -
. = == 257,856 257,856 =
=== — =5 24,839 24,839 =
67,193 67,193 — 5,153 5,153 —
2,241 2,241 = 1,618 1,618 =
5,408 5,408 = 414,025 414,025 =2
18,273 18,273 — 68,099 68,099 =
93,115 93,115 e 771,590 771,590 =
4,612 4,522 90 — == —
203,962 185,001 18,961 — = —
== — r 1,480,857 1,223,312 257,545
2 1 1 — = =)
3,138 2,033 1,105 — e ==
— s . 10,000 5,000 5,000
211,714 191,557 20,157 1,490,857 1,228,312 262,545
(118,599) (98,442) 20,157 (719,267) (456,722) 262,545
99,888 99,888 — 389,621 389,621
(5,.284) (5,284) e (97,439) (97,439) -
2,229 2,229 = 71,353 71,353
96,833 96,833 — 363,535 363,535 e
$ (21,766) (1,609) $ 20,157 $ (355,732) (93,187) & 262,545
43,544 (448,468)
$ 41,935 $ (541,655)

(continued)




STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes
Sales Taxes
Corporate and Public Utility
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes
Other Taxes
Licenses, Permits and Fees
Sales, Services and Charges
Federal Government
N R Bl aighire - L

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education
Higher Education
Public Assistance and Medicaid
Health and Human Services
Justice and Public Protection
Environmental Protection and
Transportation. . , . . . . .

Community and Economic Development
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
CAPITAL OUTLAY
OEBT SERVICE. . . . , . . . T e e T

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-in
Operating Transfers-out

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING Uses. ... ... ... . .

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FunD BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JuULY 1

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED
BALANCES (DEFICITS),

BUDGETARY FunD
JUNE 30

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

(BUDGETARY BASIS)

NATURAL RESOURCES

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFA VORABLE)
$ —S%g's =S —
10,893 10,893 -
9,468 9,468 -
30,513 30,513 -
1,003 1,003 -
43,183 43,183 -
22,365 22,365 —
117,425 117,425 —
998 737 261
100,143 84,965 15,178
7,415 2,775 4,640
37,040 36,450 590
1 1 —
145,597 124,928 20,669
(28,172) (7,503) 20,669
1,030 1,030 —
(1,715) (1,715) =
4,063 4,063
3,378 3,378 —
$ 24,794 (4125) g 20,669
L (24799
102,962
$ 98,837




WILDLIFE_AND WATERWAY SAFETY REVENUE DISTRIBUTION

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
-  $ -  § _ g 461862 § 461862 § —
— - - 175,790 175,790 —
— — - 72,031 72,031 —
4,788 4,788 — 666,474 666,474 —
- — — 8,098 8,098 —
25,626 25,626 - 381,892 381,892 -
53 53 — — - —
8,418 8,418 — s e v
4,247 4,247 — 2,510 2,510 —
43,132 43,132 — 1,768,657 1,768,657 —
36,274 33,613 2,661 — - —
— — - 1,337,548 1,313,271 24,277
5,621 1,621 4,000 — — —
41,895 35,234 6,661 1,337,548 1,313,271 24,277
1,237 7,898 6,661 431,109 455,386 24,277
3 3 - 2,933 2,933 —
(15) (15) - (433,409) (433,409) —
239 239 — — —
227 227 — (430,476) (430,476) —
1,464 8125 § 6661 S 633 24910 § 24,277
13,476 121,365
$ 21,601 § 146,275

(continued)




STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990
(amounts expressed in thousands)

(continued)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes
Sales Taxes
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . ... . . . . .
Motor Vehicle Fuel TaxesRESIER " [\ K SE IR
Other Taxes
Licenses, Permits fcskeock T | o ALY e
Sales, Services and Charges .
Federal Governme

BUDGETARY EXPENDIT! RES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Seconr
Higher Educati
Public Assista e R e R el
He na
we and Publ
Environmert
Tr- ] ARD i B amr -
al Toerpiien
3 G andg Ee
INTESS CNiRTNT
CA B
DEBT =

TARY

OF REV=
ETARY

EXCESS
OVER (UN. ENDITURES . . . . . . .
OTHER FINANCI.
Ope Transfe
Operatit ransfers-ou
Encumbrance Reversic

TOTAL OTHER FINAN

£S (USES):

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF S AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING Uses................. . .

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES

OEFICTS), wuLy 1 ...
UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND

BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . . .. . . o

(BUDGETARY BASIS)

LOCAL_TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFA VORABLE)
$ - s — s —
1,657 1,657 —
1,657 1,657 —
54,800 598 54,202
54,800 598 54,202
(53,143) 1,059 54,202
43,788 43,788
43,788 43,788 -
$ 9,355, 44847 g 54,202
2 (9355 254,202
_

$ 44,847
—_—————




OTHER TOTAL SPECIAL _REVENUE

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORA BLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORA BLE)
$ 2771 % 2771 § — § 464633 § 464633 $ —
9,985 9,985 - 185,775 185,775 —
350 350 - 83,274 83,274 —
1,104 1,104 — 930,222 930,222 —
15,079 15,079 — 57,484 57,484 -
48,992 48,992 - 586,630 586,630 —
7,569 7,569 — 14,883 14,883 —
23,795 23,795 — 2,342,394 2,342,394 —
36,316 36,316 — 399,049 399,049 —
145,961 145,961 — 5,064,344 5,064,344 —
- — — 1,121,618 1,114,305 7,313
2 1 1 16,986 15,515 1,471
— — - 598,574 547,323 51,251
— - — 945,752 861,382 84,370
43,445 38,162 5,283 265,087 238,032 27,055
57 34 23 136,619 118,754 17,865
3,746 1,066 2,680 1,484,603 1,224,378 260,225
:03,768 93,025 10,743 112,002 95,811 16,191
22,939 21,491 1,448 317,900 267,597 50,303
21 21 — 1,337,593 1,313,315 24,278
995 169 826 84,922 22,835 62,087
— — — 10,000 5,000 5,000
174,973 153,969 21,004 6,431,656 5,824,247 607,409
(29,012) (8,008) 21,004 (1,367,312) (759,903) 607,409
8,225 8,225 — 1,293,237 1,293,237
(1,962) (1,962) - (662,195) (662,195) —
1,101 1.101 — 109,529 109,529
7,364 7,364 — 740,571 740,571 —
$ (21,648) (644) $ 21,004 §___ (626741 (19,332) § 607,409
y_w13:w49,334 (64245

$ 48,690 $ (83,577)




DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for the payment
of general long-term debt principal and interest.

cipal and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 15, Article VIII of the Ohio
Constitution to provide financing for coal research and development projects,

resources and for other purposes.

The Highway Improvements Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal
and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2g, Article VIII of the Ohio
Constitution to provide financing for the acquisition of rights-of-way and for the construction and
reconstruction of the State's highways and urban extensions.

The Highway Obligations Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and
interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2i, Article VHI of the Ohio
Constitution to provide financing for construction of the State's highways.

Constitution to provide financing for the improvement of higher education lacilities, water
pollution controls, parks and natural resources, and other projects.




DEBT SERVICE FUNDS ( Continued)

The Vietnam Conflict Compensation Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2j, Article VIII of the
Ohio Constitution to provide compensation to Ohioans that served in the military during the
Vietnam Conflict.

The Local Infrastructure Improvements Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment
of principal and intereston general obligation bonds authorized by Section 2k, Article VIII of the
Ohio Constitution to provide financing for the cost of local government's public infrastructure
improvement projects.

The Ohio Public Facilities Commission Fund accounts for the payment of principal and inter-
est on special obligation bonds issued to finance the construction of mental health, higher edu-
cation, parks and recreation, and State park facilities.

The Ohio Building Authority Fund accounts forthe payment of principal and intereston special
obligation bonds issued to finance the construction of State office buildings and rehabilitation
and correctional facilities.

The Salt Fork Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest on
special obligation bonds issued to finance the cost of improvements at Salt Fork State Park.

The Enterprise Bond Retirement Fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest on
revenue bonds issued to finance "eligible projects," as defined by Chapter 166.01, Ohio Revised
Code, that will create or retain jobs and employment opportunities in the State.




STATE OF OHIO
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . .. .. . . . . . .
Cash with Custodian . . . ..., . . _ . "'"‘°
Ivesimentsnt EalNs Tl - i S e s

TaxesE IR SHG ] X1 oieiln i Jesit 1 0y
A TR ¥ - o . SRl -

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . ... ... .. .
ToaiLiabilitios ™ - = T SEREHRPIT W (o ey o ity

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Bl iSatvica S N e e =

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

COAL RESEARCH/

ECONOMIC OHIO TURNPIKE DEVELOPMENT
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION BOND
BOND SERVICE BOND SERVICE RETIREMENT

$ - $ — 3 1
23 206 -
14 — —
76 - -

$ 13 ¢ 206 § 1
$ = $ 4 s —
— 34 =

113 172 1

113 172 1

$ 113 g 206 s 1




VIETNAM

HIGHWAY HIGHWAY PUBLIC CONFLICT
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS IMPROVEMENTS COMPENSATION
BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND
RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT
$ 4,444  § 2317 § 3 $ 105845 $ 718 270
756 326 590 1,264 1,610 465
804 = ol 7,087 = =
33 18 - 760 e 2
30 16 = 684 - 2
$ 6,067 $ 2677 $ 500 $ 115640 $ 1,681 § 739
$ 556 § 76 $ 365 $ 1,014 $ 1410 $ - 215
556 76 365 1,014 1,410 215
5,511 2,601 225 114,626 271 524
5,511 2,601 225 114,626 271 524
$ 6067 $ 2677 $ 590 $ 115640 $ 1,681 § 739

(continued)




STATE OF OHIO
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . ... . . . .
Cash with Custodian . ., ...,  _ [ /"""""
ivestmenis TR SEIEL SIS - ST SRR

[axcs LRl B s e e
Other . . .. ......... .. . B R0 o oo o

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Refund and Other Liabilities . . . ... .. . . .. . . .
Tolal Liabities™ ="~ . . = ee e S

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

DebhySeqvical b Gl R 120 e DT S

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

LOCAL
INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS OHIO PUBLIC OHIO
BOND FACILITIES BUILDING
RETIREMENT COMMISSION AUTHORITY
s — —_—
== 2,797 3,829
S 317,894 127,104
= 27,095 1,776
$ 347,786 132,709
$ = 6,503 7,581
- 6,503 7,581
341,283 125,128
341,283 125,128
$ 347,786 132,709




SALT FORK ENTERPRISE
BOND BOND
RETIREMENT RETIREMENT TOTAL
— =5 112,954
= 25 11,891
1,889 19,781 466,682
= — 7,891
51 58 29,869
= o 732
1,940 19,864 630,019
. 3 17,754
== == 17,754
1,940 19,864 612,265
1,940 19,864 612,265
1,940 19,864 630,019
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STATE OF OHIO
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVEN UES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

famounts expressed in thousands)

COAL RESEARCH/

ECONOMIC OHIO TURNPIKE DEVELOPMENT
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION BOND
BOND SERVICE BOND SERVICE RETIREMENT
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . ... ... .. .. . . . . . . s - $ — $ —_
OthergTaxos sl e I € /SRS el . —_ —_ —_
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . ... .. . . . .. 7' - —_ —_
Federal Government. . . . . ... . . —_ —_ —_
O oo e TP o 00 OHIE Gl s e o U 231 18 5
TOTALIAEVENUESRS SISE RIS L JeS S ey * 231 18 5
EXPENDITURES:
DEBTESERVICE PR Pl oA S S i e 42,990 409 6,796
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . ... ... . ... . . . . . . 42,990 409 6,796

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXRENDITURES| NS PREp ™ L1 S sgaiiniey Jon (42,759) (391) (6,791)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Refunding Bond Proceeds

..................... 147,685 — =

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents. . . ... ... . . (147,685) o= —
Operating Transfers-in. . .. ..., . .. .. . . . ' " 17,093 391 6,781

Ope-ating Transfers-out . . . . ... . .. . . "7 = — —_
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . ... ... 17,093 391 6,781

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

EINANCINGRUSESEVE Ce Bl SRS B < et ) (25,666) = (10)
HUUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (as restated) . . . . ... ., . .. .. . . . 25,779 172 11

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30...... .. . .. $ 13 § 172§ 1




VIETNAM

HIGHWAY HIGHWAY PUBLIC CONFLICT
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS lMPROVEMENTS COMPENSA TION
BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND
- RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT RETIREMENT
— $ s —  $ 35672 $ —  $ —
12,465 — — 41,432 = =
— — — 189 — —_
398 270 90 11,998 72 46
12,863 270 90 89,291 72 46
17,024 2,047 18,981 97,500 17,489 58427
17,024 2,047 18,981 97,500 17,489 5,127
(4,161) (1,777) (18,891) (8,209) (17,417) (5,081)
3,946 — 18,795 — 17,402 5,125
3,946 — 18,795 — 17,402 5,125
(215) (1,777) (96) (8,209) (15) 44
5,726 4,378 321 122,835 286 480
$ 5511 § 2601 $ 25 § 114,626 $ 271§ 524

(continued)




STATE OF OHIO
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT

OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes
Other Taxes

Others ey BREEr . i n =

EXPENDITURES:
DeEBT semvice. . ... . . . .

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

2 A S R AL

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Refunding Bond Proceeds

Operating Transfers-in. . . . . .
Operating Transfers-out . . . . .

(USES):

Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES

LOCAL
INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS OHIO PUBLIC OHIO
BOND FACILITIES BUILDING
RETIREMENT COMMISSION AUTHORITY
$ i $ — $ =
— 448 —
14 28,198 10,399
14 28,646 10,399
13,770 309,069 98,642
13,770 309,069 98,642
(13,756) (280,423) (88,243)
13,754 306,809 99,111
— — (2,226)
13,754 306,809 96,885
2 26,386 8,642
8 314,897 116,486
$ 6 $§ 341283 g 125,128




SALT FORK

ENTERPRISE

BOND BOND
RETIREMENT RETIREMENT TOTAL

= -  § 35,672

— — 53,897

— — 189

L — 448

159 1,700 53,598

159 1,700 143,804

625 1,442 631,911

625 1,442 631,911
(466) 258 (488,107)

— — 147,685
— — (147,685)

635 744 490,586
= = (2,226)

635 744 488,360

169 1,002 253

1,771 18,862 612,012
1,940 19,864 $ 612,265

o




STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes;". . . .| o INEEACS

CHERUIT o by ot R e

Licenses, Permits and (T3] ud o e e o ol P
Olfici UL SR e . L 5

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CEL ST G o o o fi o eI e

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . .. . . . |

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
COLWEET e o, 4 Sty TR

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF RE VENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . .

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNA TED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES,
JULY 1580, 5w VS

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND
BALANCES, wuNg 30 ... .. " 7

COAL RESEARCH / DE VELOPMENT
BOND RETIREMENT

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ = $ = $ =
6,787 6,787 =
6,787 6,787 =
10,346 6,797 3,549
10,346 6,797 3,549
(3,559) (10) 3,549
$ (3,559) (10) s 3,549
11
$ 1

II




IMPROVEMENTS HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

BOND RETIREMENT BOND RETIREMENT
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
$ — s — s - s - - s —
12,756 12,756 - - - —
4,322 4,322 — 277 277 —
17,078 17,078 — 277 277 —
17,034 17,024 10 2,047 2,047 —
17,034 17,024 10 2,047 2,047 —
44 54 10 (1,770) (1,770) —
$ 44 54 § 10 § (1,770) (1,770) $ —
4,390 4,087
$ 4,444 $ 2,317

(continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounls expressed in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUES:

Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . .. .. ... .. ... .. ...

Other Taxes .. ...

Licenses, Permits and Fees . .. .. ... .. ... .....

Oter.. .. ...

TOTABRREVENUES T RS VRS R o o e .

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE. .. ..

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . .. .. ... ... ..

EXCESS (DEFIC OF NUES
0 G EXPENDITURES .. ... ... ..
OTF i | [CES:
ond eds. ...
TORTAL OTriER ™ GSOURCES .. ..........
EXCE- ENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOIRCES Ol 'JDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . ..

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES,

UNRESERVED, UN GNATED BUDGETARY FUND

BALANCES, JUNE 30 ... .. .. ... . ... .. ...

DEVELOPMENT
BOND RETIREMENT
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ = $ o $ =
158,886 18,886 =
18,886 18,886 —
19030 18,980 50
19030 18,980 50
(144) (94) 50
$ 144 (94) § 50
94
s —



HIGHWAY OBLIGATIONS

BOND RETIREMENT

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

BOND RETIREMENT

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 40,712 $ 40,712 $ = s = $ —
49,452 49,452 -y _— = =
189 189 = = =3 =
11,559 11,559 — 17,474 17,474 —
101,912 101,912 = 17,474 17,474 -
113,617 97,500 16,117 17,489 17,489 .
113,617 97,500 16,117 17,489 17,489 —
(11,705) 4,412 16,117 (15) (15) —
$ /11,705) 4,412 $ 16,117 (15) (15) § —
101,433 86
$ 105,845 71
(continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

(continued)
VIETNAM CONFLICT COMPENSATION
BOND RETIREMENT
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . .. ................ $ — $ —_ $

OtherSTaxesE k- b h: L N e e = _

(O abiom e o g b SETE TR RIS dacarhs 8 TPRr A 5,169 5,169
TOTAL REVENUES . ... .. ... .. ... ... 5,169 5,169

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
DEBYLSERVICE: St s e a8 S R 5127 5127

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . . ... ... .. 5,127 5,127 =

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . ... ... ... 42 42 o

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Bond Proceeds . . . . ... ... ..., — _ —_

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ... ......... = S —

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . $ 42 42 $ =3

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES,
JULYRTTT T TSN e gty g S . = o SO e 228

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND
BALANCES, JUNE 30 . . .. ... ............. 3 270



LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS
BOND RETIREMENT

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
$ = $ — — $ 40,712  § 40,712 $ =
= - — 62,208 62,208 S
= — — 189 189 e
13,769 13,769 = 78,243 78,243 —
13,769 13,769 s 181,352 181,352 =
17,416 13,999 3,417 202,106 178,963 23,143
17,416 13,999 3,417 202,106 178,963 23,143
(3,647) (230) 3,417 (20,754) 2,389 23,143
229 229 == 229 229 =
229 229 = 229 229 .
$ (3,418) (1) 3417 8 (20,525) 2618 $ 23,143
7 110,336
$ 6 $ 112,954
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and for major repairs and replacements other than those financed by
proprietary funds and trust funds.

The Ohio Turnpike Commission Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance capital outlay
and major repairs and replacements for the Ohio Turnpike.

The Higher Education Improvements Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance the con-
struction of facilities for State-assisted higher education institutions.

The Highway Obligations Construction Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance capital
outlay and major repairs and replacements for the State's highways.

The Mental Health/Mental Retardation Facilities Improvements Fund accounts for bond
proceeds that finance the construction of mental health/mental retardation facilities.

The Parks and Recreation Improvements Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance the
capital improvement of park and recreation facilities.

The Local Infrastructure Improvements Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance the
cost of local government's public infrastructure improvement projects.

The Ohio Building Authority Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance the construction
of State office buildings and rehabilitation and correctional facilities.
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STATE OF OHIO
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . ... ... ........
Cash with Custodian . . . . ... ... ............
Investiments WeSEGATHI SRRS S 0L DS ISR B

Receivables:

OthergSESTE Y e, Tr . i MR T ey,
Due from Other Funds . . . . . . .. .. .. ... ...

TOTAL ASSETS . . . . ... ... ... ... ......

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable . . . . ... ... ....... ... ....
Due to Other Funds . .. ...................
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . . .. ...........
Special Obligation Notes . . . . ... ... ..........

Total Liabilites . . . .. ... ... ... . . .. ......

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances . . . . . . . . . i i i e e e e
Other™ . . T TRy s D, =0 it
Unreserved Undesignated (Deficits) . . . . .. ... .. ...

I'tal “und Balances. . . . . . . . ... . ... ... ...

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

HIGHER HIGHWAY
OHIO TURNPIKE EDUCATION OBLIGATIONS
COMMISSION IMPROVEMENTS CONTSTRUCTION
$ = $ 56,397 $ 3,290
5,704 =P P
17,730 = =
306 469 27
= 422 24
$ 23,740 $ 57,288 $ 3,341
$ = $ 15,829 $ 3,221
5,704 - =
5,704 15,829 3,221
~ 124,387 87,177
18,036 Ta —
T (82,928) (87,057)
18,036 41,459 120
$ 23,740 $ 57,288 $ 3,341




MENTAL HEALTH/
MENTAL

RETARDATION PARKS AND LOCAL OHIO
FACILITIES RECREATION INFRASTRUCTURE BUILDING
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY TOTAL
$ 40,126 $ 17460 § 229065 § - 346,338
— — - 149 5,853
— — — 206,812 224,542
313 137 820 2,021 4,093
281 124 - — 851
$ 40,720 § 17,721 § 229885 $ 208,982 581,677
$ 3219 $ 1,658 § 5259 § 14,750 43,936
— — 935 - 935
— — — — 5,704
— — — 16,900 16,900
3,219 1,658 6,194 31,650 67,475
49,529 7,772 — — 268,865
— — — - 18,036
(12,028) 8,291 223,691 177,332 227,301
J7,501 16,063 223,691 177,332 514,202
$ 40,720 § 17721 § 229885 § 208,982 581,677
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STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

HIGHER HIGHWAY
OHIO TURNPIKE EDUCATION OBLIGATIONS
COMMISSION IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION
REVENUES:
Other R T s et $ 2,381 $ 7,688 $ 1,776
TOTAL REVENUES . . . . . . . . ... v, 2,381 7,688 1,776
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

TransSpoation SIS o PRt e . | RO . . 38,568 B =
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . . . . . et i e i e 15,567 180,026 44,505
DEBTSERVICE. . . . . " .l . . . o it o i e v — 595 =

TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . ... . ... ... ... ...... 54,135 180,621 44,505
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES . . . .. . .. (51,754) (172,933) (42,729)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

BondgRroceedsp® == 3 Rare a0 i .. = 113,876 =

Operating Transfers-in. . . . ... ................. 45,950 = —

Operating Transfers-out . . . . .. .. ............... — — —

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . ... ... 45,950 113,876 —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FiNANCING USES . . . . . . .. ... ... ............ (5,804) (59,057) (42,729)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (as restated) . . . .. ............ 23,840 100,516 42,849
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30.................. $ 18,036 § 41459 § 120




MENTAL HEALTH/
MENTAL

RETARDATION PARKS AND LOCAL OHIO
FACILITIES RECREATION INFRASTRUCTURE BUILDING
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY TOTAL

$ 3953 § 2600 § 15110 § 16877 § 50,385
3,953 2,600 15,110 16,877 50,385

=T 5 2 = — 38,568

28,062 20,468 33,297 74,688 396,613

494 — 1,626 672 3,387

28,556 20,468 34,923 75,360 438,568
(24,603) (17,868) (19,813) (58,483) (388,183)

39,895 120,000 = 273,771

40 a — 6,854 52,844
= (46) = (46)

39,935 = 119,954 6,854 326,569
15,332 (17,868) 100,141 (51,629) (61,614)

22,169 33,931 123,550 228,961 575,816

$ 37,501 $ 16,063 § 223,691 $ 177,332 $ 514,202
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises -- where the State's intent is that the cost
of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed
or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the State has decided that
periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

The State Parking Commission Fund accounts for the operations of the State Parking Commis-
sion.

The Liquor Control Fund accounts for the operations of the Department of Liquor Control.
The Ohio Lottery Commission Fund accounts for the operations of the State Lottery.

The Workers' Compensation Fund accounts for the operations of the Bureau of Workers'
Compensation and the Ohio Industrial Commission.

The Tuition Trust Authority Fund accounts for the operations of the Ohio Tuition Trust
Authority.
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STATE OF OHIO
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

STATE OHIO
PARKING LIQUOR LOTTERY
COMMISSION CONTROL COMMISSION
ASSETS
Current Assels:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . ... ........... $ = 6,113 $ 24,095
Cash with Custodian . . . . ... ............... 403 5,639 581
INVESIMENISI T L E ks TLr. T A s e e el T 7,325 = 11,667
Receivables:
Premiums and Assessments . . . . . . . .. ... ... ... = = —_—
Other@Pl N~ . P = T N TR e, . = 1, 1., o 103 212 28,696
Due from Other Funds . . . . .. .. ... .......... == 36 726
Inventlories s e ... . S8 SRR bl . 2o, I N = 22,100 S
OthenfAssels B P . o PR T .1 . . o 282 393 3,895
Total Current Assets. . . . . . . . . v i vi v v 8,113 34,493 69,660
Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . ... ........... = = 51,271
Dedicated Investments . . . .. ... ... .......... — — 805,278
Total Restricted Assets . . .. ... ............ = i 856,549
Noncurrent Assets:
Investmentsf i LERNA N AN L LU U e = —_— —
Total Noncurrent Assets. . . ... ... .......... — = _—
Fixed Assets:
FixedFAsSelsTERe miogel . . e i denn ol - 8,905 11,621 41,442
Less Accumulated Depreciation . . . . . ... ........ (4,028) (7,502) (25,276)
Total Fixed Assets . . . . . . .. .........o..... 4,877 4,119 16,166
TOTAL ASSETS . . . . ... .. .. .. .. . ...... $ 12,990 38,612 $ 942,375
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable . . . . . ... ... ... ... .. ..... $ 806 11,984 $ 2,930
Accrued Liabilities . . . . . . . . ... ... . ... 127 5,583 —3
Due to Other Funds . . . .. ... ... ... ........ = 54 1,990
Deferred Revenues . . . . . . .. ... . .. — 7 602
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . .. .. .......... 99 3,414 10,374
Total Current Liabilities . . .. ... ............ 1,032 21,042 15,896
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Deferred Prize Awards Payable. . . . ............ - — 847,824
Total Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets . . . . . — — 847,824
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities . . . . . . . . . ... .. . — —_ 936
Workers’' Compensation Benefits Payable . . . . ... . .. L —_— —
Revenue Bonds . . . . ... ... ............... 2,791 - —_
Total Noncurrent Liabilities . . . . ... ... ... .... 2,791 - 936
Total Liabilities . . . . .. ... . ... ... ... ..... 3,823 21,042 864,656
Fund Equity:
Net Unrealized Gains on Investments . . .. ... ... .. —_— —_ —_
Retained Earnings:
Reserved . . . . . . . . . . . . .. e —— —a 8,725
Unreserved (Deficits) . . . . . . . . . v i i i i i 9,167 17,570 68,994
Total Fund Equity (Deficits). . . . .. .. ... ... ... 9,167 17,570 77,719
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY . . . . . $ 12,990 38,612 $ 942,375




TUITION

WORKERS' TRUST
COMPENSATION AUTHORITY TOTAL
$ 15441 8 287 $ 45,936
6,993 1,509 15,125
1,048,797 — 1,067,789
1,413,715 - 1,413,715
83.866 2 112,879
— 2 764
- — 22,100
88,924 — 93,494
2,657,736 1,800 2,771,802
- — 51,271
— — 805,278
— — 856,549
5,911,852 — 5,911,852
5,911,852 — 5,911,852
311,126 26 373,120
(30,552) — (67,358)
280,574 26 305,762
$ 8850162 § 1,826 § 9,845,965
$ 18,602 § 707 § 35,029
— 67 5,777
— 166 2,210
118,803 - 119,412
439,117 1,434 454,438
576,522 2,374 616,866
- — 847,824
— — 847,824
— — 936
9,464,669 — 9,464,669
— — 2,791
9,464,669 — 9,468,396
10,041,191 2,374 10,933,086
966,715 - 966,715
151,121 — 159,846
(2,308.865) (548) (2,213,682)
(1,191,029) (548) (1,087,121)
$§ 8850162 § 1,826 § 9,845,965
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STATE OF OHIO

I'NTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

STATE OHIO
PARKING LIQUOR LOTTERY
COMMISSION CONTROL COMMISSION
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services. . . . ... ... ........ $ 2,154 $ 346,033 $ 1,620,956
Premium and Assessment Income . ... ............ = —_ —_
Investment Income. . . . .. ... ... .. e e — = 79,952
Otherh & AL oo . o M S A = s e e — 1,518 3,741
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. . . . . .. ... ... ..... 2,154 347,551 1,704,649
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services. . . . ... ... .......... 710 216,351 =
Administration. . . . . . . .. .. e e 226 58,420 180,414
Prizes and Claims . . . . . . . . . . . . ... == = 827,360
Benefit Payments and Refunds . . . ... ............ — > —
DepreciationN Bt ria . ol o ar At e 187 960 6,766
(OIS B ok ok Sos e S e s o, AR Bl 8 — 60,054
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . . . . . . . . ... ....... 1,131 275,731 1,074,594
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) . . . . . . . . ... .. .. ... 1,023 71,820 630,055
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income. . . . .. .. ... .. ... e 448 = =
Interest Expense . . . . . . . . .. ... e (24) = —
Ot eyl IRhs St S 5 = R S A N T g W, (62) (60) —
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES). . . ... .. 362 (60) —
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS . . . . .. ... 1,385 71,760 630,055
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-out . . . . . . .. ... ... ......... = (65,032) (644,267)
NET INCOME (LOSS) . . . . . . . i i i i i e 1,385 6,728 (14,212)
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated) . . . . . . .. 7,782 10,842 91,931
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS), JUNE 30. ... . s 9,167 § 17,570 § 77,719




TUITION

WORKERS’ TRUST
COMPENSATION AUTHORITY TOTAL

$ — $ 740 $ 1,969,883
1,700,783 — 1,700,783
612,361 6 692,319
21,644 — 26,903
2,334,788 746 4,389,888
— — 217,061

10,064 929 250,053

— — 827,360
1,525,498 — 1,525,498
7,084 — 14,997
210,110 365 270,537
1,752,756 1,294 3,105,506
582,032 548 1,284,382

2 448
— — (24)
= (122)

— — 302
582,032 (548 1,284,684
— — (709,299)
582,032 (548) 575,385
(2,739,776) — (2,629,221)

$ (2,157,744 § (548) $ __(2,053,836)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided
by a State department or agency to other agencies and to other government units, on
a cost-reimbursement basis.

The Ohio Building Authority Fund accounts for the revenues and operating expenses of State
office buildings and other government buildings owned by the Ohio Building Authority.

The Ohio Data Network Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses associated with elec-
tronic data-processing goods and services provided to user State agencies and to local govern-
ment.

The Ohio Penal Industries Fund accounts for revenues and expenses associated with the
purchase of raw materials and labor costs that are incurred in the production of manufactured
goods and agricultural commodities sold to user State agencies.

The Support Services Fund accounts for revenues and expenses associated with the purchase
of food, medical, and other institutional supplies and the costs of services provided to user State
agencies.

The Telecommunications Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses related to telecommu-
nications services provided to State agencies and to local government.

The Water Pollution Control Loan Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the Water
Pollution Control Loan Program administered by the Ohio Water Development Authority, which
provides financial assistance to local governments for the construction of wastewater treatment
facilities.



STATE OF OHIO
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

OHIO OHIO OHIO
BUILDING DATA PENAL
AUTHORITY NETWORK INDUSTRIES
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . ... ............. $ = $ 16,176 3 4,936
Cash with Custodian . . . ... ................ 121 14 4
Investments. . . ... .......... ... ... .. .. .. = _ —_
Receivables:
Intergovernmental . . . . ... ... ... ..., .. ..... == 20 263
Otheras= 1SS, BrlagiC e (AR S ikl Tril P i 2,322 1,123 81
Due from Other Funds . . . ... ............... == 11,293 10,348
Inventorios SWSSSERFRTSRERE 4 ety A TELRE L S = 293 8,455
OtherFAssets Ed=is PN ER - LSRN B T L3S it 412 17 ==
Total Current Assets . . . ... ............... 2,855 28,936 24,087
Restricted Assels:
Investments™ L% . INNURRL g B TR L 17,039 5,067 —
Total Restricted Assets . . .. ............... 17,039 5,067 —
Noncurrent Assets:
Other Receivables. . . ... ................. . 51,497 874 _
Loans ENetESm sl B0 . L 8 SFNaDIEEG SR — —_ —_
OthergAssetsty & . R0 Bal vs i, . ald — 17 _
Total Noncurrent Assets. . . . ... ............ 51,497 891 —
Fixed Assets:
FixedEAsselsTae R o L T e VR —~—] 55,191 6,041
Less Accumulated Depreciation . . . . ............ — (24,618) (4,027)
Total Fixed Assets . . . ... ................ — 30,573 2,014
TOTALTASSETS | +5=T8uanioy, (= TS | Ll v $ 71,391 $ 65,467 $ 26,101
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable . . . . . . Wil o vl o e o s $ 1,725 $ 2,350 $ 3,312
Accrued Liabilities . . . . ... ... ... ... ... ..... 1,092 14,544 2,451
Due to Other Funds . ... .................. 2 499 1,649
Deferred Revenues . . . . ................... 1,266 e 425
Revenue Bonds . . . . .................... . 1,883 . —_
Total Current Liabilities . .. ................ 5,966 17,393 7,837
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Certificates of Participation. . . . .............. . o 5,067 —
Total Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets . . . . . = 5,067 —
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities . . . . .. ... ..., ... .. .. ... . — 10,223 21
Revenue Bonds . . . . ..................... 51,497 —_ —
Certificates of Participation. . . . . ...... . ... . .. == 9,722 ==
Total Noncurrent Liabilities . . .. ........... .. 51,497 19,945 21
Total Liabilities . . . ................ ... .. 57,463 42,405 7,858
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital . . . ............ ... ... . . — —_ —
Retained Earnings:
Unreserved . . . ... ............. . . ..... . 13,928 23,062 18,243
Total Fund Equity . . ... ................. 13,928 23,062 18,243
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY . . . . . $ 71,391 $ 65,467 $ 26,101




WATER POLLUTION

$ 15,125

SUPPORT TELE- CONTROL LOAN

SERVICES COMMUNICATIONS FUND TOTAL
$ 1,240 § 3798 § -  $ 26,150
— — 420 559
- — 9,505 9,505
416 299 - 998
— 20 — 3,546
3,868 4,862 - 30,371
6,838 — — 15,586
- 113 — 542
12,362 9,092 9,925 87,257
— 7,684 — 29,790
— 7,684 — 29,790
- — — 52,371
- — 2,008 2,008
— 504 — 521
— 504 2,008 54,900
6,046 22,084 7 89,369
(3,283) (12,680) - (44,608)
2,763 9,404 7 44,761
$ 15,125 § 26684 § 11,990 $ 216,708
$iy. 4 2119:4aS 1,858 § 659 § 12,023
672 486 51 19,296
21 29 135 2,333
— — — 1,691
— — — 1,883
2,812 2373 845 37,226
— 7,684 — 12,751
— 7,684 — 12,751
— — — 10,244
- — — 51,497
— 15,761 — 25,483
— 15,761 — 87,224
2,812 25,818 845 137,201
1,374 - — 1,374
10,939 866 11,095 78,133
12,313 866 11,095 79,507
$ 26684 $ 11,940 $ 216,708

4 ne
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STATE OF OHIO

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services. . . . .. ... .........
Investment Income. . . . ... ... ... ...

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services. . . . .. .. ... .........

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income. . . . . . . . . . . . e e

OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-in. . . . . . . ... . ... ... ......

NET INCOME (LOSS) . . . . . .. . ... it vttt

RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1 (as restated). . . . ... ........

RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30. . ........... ..

OHIO OHIO OHIO
BUILDING DATA PENAL

AUTHORITY NETWORK INDUSTRIES
22,434 39,140 $ 29,729
1,862 100 1,002
24,296 39,240 30,731
16,379 678 15,171
1,661 23,463 9,973
— 7,193 408
1,386 7,692 366
19,426 39,026 25,918
4,870 214 4,813

1,583 1,245 —

(4,626) (2,068) -
— (1,331) (85)
(3,043) (2,1549) (85)
1,827 (1,940) 4,728
— — 82
1,827 (1,940) 4,810
12,101 25,002 13,433
13,928 23,062 $ 18,243




WATER POLLUTION

SUPPORT TELE- CONTROL LOAN
SERVICES COMMUNICATIONS FUND TOTAL

$ 45269 § 30838 § = $ 167,410
=== gs 204 204
672 97 — 3,733
45,941 30,935 204 171,347
36,701 21,384 - 90,313
7.805 4,530 = 47,432

124 2857 - 10,582

306 124 354 10,228

44,936 28,895 354 158,555
1,005 2,040 (150) 12,792

— 932 - 3,760
T (2,245) f— (8,939)
(979) (3) 625 (1,773)
(979) (1,316) 625 (6,952)

26 724 475 5,840

— — 10,620 10,702

26 724 11,095 16,542

10,913 142 — 61,591

$ 10939 § 866 $ 11,095 § 78,133
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

The Trust Funds account for assets held by the State ina trustee capacity. The Agency
Funds account for assets held by the State as an agent for individuals, private organi-
zations, other governments, and/or other funds.

Expendable Trust
The Employment Services Fund accounts for unemployment insurance benefit claims.

Pension Trust
The State Highway Patrol Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for pension beriefit
payments to qualified employees who participate in the State Highway Patrol Retirement
System.

Agency
The Holding and Distribution Fund accounts for assets held until such time that a determina-
tion has been made to refund amounts to the original owners or to distribute amounts to other State
funds.

The Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits Fund accounts for assets held to liquidate the
State's payroll withholding obligations.

The Tax Refunds Fund accounts for assets held to liquidate the State's tax refund obligations.

The Unclaimed Funds Fund accounts for assets held for owners of unclaimed intangible prop-
erty. Unclaimed property is property for which the owner has not taken some action to indicate
ownership interest over acertain period of time specified under Chapter 169, Ohio Revised Code.

The Star Ohio Fund accounts for assets held for local government units that participate in the
State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROhio), a pooled investment fund managed by the
Treasurer of State.

The Deferred Compensation Fund accounts for assets held for employees in accordance with
the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

The Other Fund accounts for assets held for others, which are not accounted for in another
agency fund.
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STATE OF OHIO
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

EXPENDABLE PENSION
TRUST TRUST AGENCY
STATE
EMPLOYMENT HIGHWAY HOLDING &
SERVICES PATROL DISTRIBUTION
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . ... ... ........ $ = $ == 3 32,973
Cash with Custodian . . . . ... ............... 638 = 5,546
IR S0 & o oid (Bh0 o0 8 oo o B o s b bl ot 4 b 5o i 191,130 —
Depnsit with Federal Government. . . . . . ... ...... 857,651 = =
vles:
Em. oyer Contributions . . . . . . .. ... ... ... ... 185,342 g =
EAins b o o S B TSl gy - S L 12 = 2,731 —
Due fromOther Funds . . . . .. .. ... ... ....... = 1,799 —
Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan . ... ... .. — c= ==
2 ASS OIS I e ek L T LT = 51 >
Surciig . ¥ o A o R L R S 4,638 — ——
TOTALIASSETS i A ma bl asts b nd s a1 $ 1,048,269 $ 195,711 $ 38,519
LIABIL ' "IES AND FUND BALANCES
Accrued Liabilties' L. UL B g $ - $ L $ L
e o Other F RGN = A LN b U A — == 35,368
£ iand < L e [0 s o TP 24,820 240 3,151
Liatuiiy Jor Geolerred Cooo o [l el T RTE 5 i et s - o
TRl e S S S S SR L 24,820 240 38,519
Fo didi o
Rleserved for:
Ponsion®Benefits Me T 1100 T SIS EEGH Ty of = 195,471 ——
Unreserved/Undesignated. .~ . . . . . ... .......... 1,023,449 = =
Total Fund Balances . . . . ... ... ........... 1,023,449 195,471 i
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES .. § 1,048,269 $ 195,711 $ 38,519
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PAYROLL

WITHHOLDING & UNCLAIMED STAR DEFERRED
FRINGE BENEFITS TAX_REFUNDS FUNDS OHIO COMPENSATION OTHER
$ 135095 § 7808 § b = $ = 8,105
232 - 13,136 = ] 10,441
= — 87,016 1,131,924 v 4,778
404 S 35,824 u = 69
363 = i — 2 19
— = = s 265,204 ==
e i = —u = 290,979
$ 136,094 $ 7808 $§ 135,976 1,131,924 § 265,206 314,391
$ 2760 § — $ e 1,131,924  § = 7,746
12,100 == - = = 7
121,234 7,808 135,976 = o 306,645
— = —3 = 265,206 =
136,094 7,808 135,976 1,131,924 265,206 314,391
$ 136,094 § 7808 $ 135,976 1,131,924 § 265,206 314,391

{continued)
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STATE OF OHIO
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(continued)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . ... .. ..
Cash with Custodian . . ... ........
Investments. . . . . .. ... ... ... ...
Deposit with Federal Government. . . . . .

Receivables:

Employer Contributions . . . . ... ... ..
CUIEF o/6- 00 3 0mogs & Gonk 11 B wo e
Due from Other Funds . . . . ... ... ..
Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan
Other Assets . . . . .. ............
SuretiosPraLipiess = - L o8 L.

TOTAL ASSETS . . . ... .... ...

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accrued Liabilites . . . .. ... .......
Due to Other Funds . . .. .........
Refund and Other Liabilites . . . . ... ..
Liabilitv for Deferred Compensation. . . . .

Total Liabilites . . .. ... ........

und Balances:
Reserved for:

Pension Benefits . . . ... .........

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .

$

TOTAL

183,981
29,993
1,414,848
857,651

185,342
39,028
2,183
265,204
51
295,617

3,273,898

1,142,430
47,468
599,874
265,206

2,054,978

195,471

1,023,449
1,218,920
3,273,898
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STATE OF OHIO

AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

HOLDING & DISTRIBUTION:

ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . ... .....
Cash with Custodian . . . . ... ........

Total Assets. . . . ... ............

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Funds . ... ...........

PAYROLL WITHHOLDING & FRINGE BENEFITS:

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . ... ... ...
Cash with Custodian . . . . ... ........
Other Receivables. . . . . . ... ........
Due from Other Funds . . . .. ... ......

Total Assets. . . . ... ............
LIABILITIES

TAX REFUNDS:

ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . ........

Total Assets. . . . . ... ... ... .....
LIABILITIES )

UNCLAIMED FUNDS:
ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . . ... ...

Total Liabilities . . ... . ... ...

34

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 1989 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 1990

$ 27,377 665,822 660,226 $ 32,973
6,775 420,000 421,229 5,546
$ 34,152 1,085,822 1,081,455 $ 38,519
$ 30,876 660,636 656,144 $ 35,368
3,276 3,957 4,082 3,151
$ 34,152 664,593 660,226 $ 38,519
$ 120,516 991,483 976,904 $§ 135,095
522 6,969 7,259 232
251 404 251 404
259 5,107 5,003 363
$ 121,548 1,003,963 989,417 $ 136,094
$ 1,200 235,409 233,849 $§ 2,760
10,108 116,143 114,151 12,100
110,240 640,247 629,253 121,234
$ 121,548 991,799 977,253 $ 136,094
$ 8,531 1,181,612 1,182,235 $§ 7,808
$ 8,531 1,181,512 1,182,235 $ 7,808

$ = 604,818 604,818 $ )
8,531 576,694 577,417 7,808
$ 8,531 1,181,512 1,182,235 $ 7,808
$ 12,203 161,604 160,671 § 13,136
65,305 138,385 116,674 87,016
35,824 = — 35,824

5,008 — 5,008 =
$ 118,340 299,989 282,353 $ 135,976
$ 118,340 25,725 8089 § 135,976
$ 118,340 25,725 8,089 $ 135,976




STAR OHIO:
ASSETS

InvestmentS. . . . .« c o e e e e
Total ASSElS. . . . v o o i i

LIABILITIES

Accrued Liabilities . . . . . . . ..o
Total Liabilities . . . . . .. .« .«

DEFERRED COMPENSATION:
ASSETS

Due from Other Funds . . . . . .. ... ....
Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan . .

Total ASSEIS . . . . . - o o o e

LIABILITIES

Liability for Deferred Compensation. . . . . . .
Tolal Liabilities . . . . .. ..«

OTHER:
ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . ... ....
Cash with Custodian . . . . .. ... ......
jnvestments. . . . . .« .« oo e
Other Receivables. . . . . . .. .. . ... ...
Due from Other Funds . . . . . . . . ... ...
SUMBHES . o o o e e e e e e

Total ASSEIS. . . . v v i e e

LIABILITIES

Accrued Liabilities . . . . . ... .. oo
Refund and Other Liabilites . . . . .. ... ..
Due to Other Funds . . . . .. .. .. ...

Total Liabilities . . . . . . . ... .

TOTAL AGENCY:
ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . .. ... ..
Cash with Custodian . . . . . ... ... ...
Investments. . . . « .« o oo e
Other Receivables. . . . . . . . .. ...
Due from Other Funds . . . . . .. ... . ...
Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan . .
SUIBHES . . o v v v e e

Total ASSEIS . . . o« v v e

LIABILITIES

Accrued Liabilities . . . . . . .. ..o e
Due to Other Funds . . . . . ... ... ...
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . . .. . ...
Liability for Deferred Compensation. . . . . . .

Total Liabilities . . . . . .« .« oo

BALANCE BALANCE

JULY 1, 1989 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 1990
587,497 $ 4,205,150 $ 3,660,723 1,131,924
587,497 $ 4,205,150 $ 3,660,723 1,131,924
587,497 $ 4,205,150 $ 3,660,723 1,131,924
587,497 $ 4,205,150 $ 3,660,723 1,131,924
— 3 41,095 $ 41,093 2
216,111 62,490 13,397 265,204
216,111 § 103,585 $ 54,490 265,206
216,111 § 62492 § 13,397 265,206
216,111 § 62,492 $ 13,397 265,206
12,284 $ 23,541 § 27,720 8,105
9,392 113,755 112,706 10,441
3,738 25,795 24,755 4,778
60 69 60 69
4 100 85 19
258,760 166,703 134,484 290,979
284,238 § 329,963 $ 299,810 314,391
6,917 $ 23,342 § 22,513 7,746
272,313 306,476 272,144 306,645
5,008 — 5,008 —
284,238 $ 329,818 $ 299,665 314,391
168,708 $ 2,862,358 $ 2,847,085 183,981
28,892 702,328 701,865 29,355
656,540 4,369,330 3,802,152 1,223,718
36,135 473 311 36,297
5,271 46,302 51,189 384
216,111 62,490 13,397 265,204
258,760 166,703 134,484 290,979
1,370,417 8 8,209,984 $ 7,550,483 2,029,918
595,614 § 5068719 $ 4,521,903 1,142,430
45,992 776,779 775,303 47,468
512,700 1,553,099 1,490,985 574,814
216,111 62,492 13,397 265,206
1,370,417 § 7,461,089 $ 6,801,588 2,029,918
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired or con-
structed for use by the State for general governmental purposes. Theseinclude all fixed
assets except those accounted for in the proprietary and trust funds.
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STATE OF OHIO

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

BALANCE DELETIONS/ BALANCE
JULY 1, 1989 ADDITIONS NET TRANSFERS JUNE 30, 1950
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:
Fanaerg™ N e s AR $ 157234 ¢ 2397 $ (13944) $& 145,687
Buildings™y. . % e ik T L N 1,383,896 10,134 197,845 1,691,875
Land Improvements . . ... .............. 78,215 300 19,163 97,678
Machinery and Equipment . . ... .......... 139,829 14,687 (1,155) 153,361
State Vehicles . . . ... ................ 162,139 24,000 (21,341) 164,798
Construction-in-Progress. . . . . . ... ........ 227,602 97,408 (204,627) 120,383
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS. . . . ... ........ $ 2148915 $ 148926 $ (24,059) $ 2,273,782
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:
ACQUIRED BEFORE JULY 1, 1987. . . . ... ... ... $ 1415601 § 249 § (73295) $ 1,342,555
ACQUIRED ON OR AFTER JULY 1, 1987:
Capital Projects Funds:

Special Obligation Bonds . ............. 596,132 74,838 24,996 695,966
General Fund Revenues . . .. ............ 37,887 17,203 313 55,403
Special Revenue Fund Revenues. . ......... 99,295 56,539 23,590 179,424
Donations . . .. ... ......... . ... ..... - 97 337 434

TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS . . . . . $ 2148915 $ 148926 $ (24,059) $ 2,273,782




STATE OF OHIO

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1990

(amounts expressed in thousands)

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . . .. .

Higher Education .

Public Assistance and Med/cald
Health and Human Services .
Justice and Public Protection

Environmental Protection and Natural Resources. .

Transportation. .
General Government.
Community and Econom/c Development

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

ALLOCATED TO FUNCTIONS . . . .. ... .. ... ...
Construction-in-Progress. . . . .. ... .. ... ...

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS. . .. ... .. .. ... .

BALANCE DELETIONS/ BALANCE
JULY 1, 1989 ADDITIONS NET TRANSFERS JUNE 30, 1990
$ 17544 $ 200 $ 1,851 § 19,595

4,647 = (899) 3,748
555 1,380 24 1,959
487,239 12,465 (3,574) 496,130
502,177 8,533 155,726 666,436
242,052 3,198 (8,611) 236,639
317,296 22,054 28,360 367,710
320,123 2,608 7,964 330,695
29,680 1,080 (273) 30,487
1,921,313 51,518 180,568 2,153,399
227,602 97,408 (204,627) 120,383
$ 2148915 $ 148,926 § (24,059) $ 2273782
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STATE OF OHIO LIDES

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL AND SPECIAL
BONDED DEBT*TO TOTAL REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(amounts expressed in thousands)

For the
Year Ended Total
June 30, Debt Service Revenues Ratio Expenditures Ratio

1981 $ 270,279 $ 8,101,259 3.34% $ 8,455,528 3.20%
1982 288,202 8,661,302 3.33% 8,767,226 3.29%
1983 328,074 9,807,683 3.35% 10,003,303 3.28%
1084 401,079 11,181,357 3.59% 11,354,041 3.53%
1985 415,892 12,264,882 3.39% 12,485,514 3.33%
1986 447,369 13,412,852 3.34% 13,791,810 3.24%
1987 486,838 13,636,238 3.57% 14,318,350 3.40%
1988 562,506 14,500,448 3.88% 15,344,437 3.67%
1989 562,195 15,704,545 3.58% 16,253,253 3.46%
1990 587,070 16,849,936 3.48% 17,666,608 3.32%

* |ncludes general and special obligation bonds.

Data for fiscal years 1981 to 1987 is presented on a non-GAAP, budgetary basis while data for fiscal years 1988
through 1990is shownon aGAAPbasis. Amounts paidtothe Ohio Building Authority fordebtservicerelatedto special
obligations debt forfiscal years 1981 to1 987 are recordedon anon-GAAP,budgetary basisas leaserentalpayments.
Thus, these amounts are notincluded above as debt service expenditures.
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STATE OF OHIO Lubleld
NET GENERAL AND SPECIAL BONDED DEBT* PER CAPITA
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
General and Special Obligation Bonds
Less Amount Net
For the Total Available in Bonded Net
Year Ended Population QOutstanding Debt Service Fund Debt Bonded Debt
June 30, (in 000s) (in 000s) (in O00s) (in 000s) Per Capita
1981 10,801 $2,622,545 $237,648 $2,384,897 $221
1982 10,777 2,537,550 257,964 2,279,586 212
1983 10,761 2,824,483 302,058 2,522,425 234
1984 10,771 2,743,891 323,183 2,420,708 225
1985 10,775 3,011,183 360,553 2,650,630 246
1986 10,779 3,320,101 439,661 2,880,440 267
1987 10,817 3,580,128 481,726 3,098,402 286
1988 10,864 3,743,526 548,376 3,195,150 294
1989 10,907 4,009,894 625,526 3,384,368 310
1990 10,907+ 3,974,040 588,991 3,385,049 310

* Includes general and special obligation bonds of the following combining funds: Economic Development
Bond Service, Ohio Turnpike Commission Bond Service, Highway Improvements Bond Retirement, Vietnam
Conflict Compensation Bond Retirement, and Enterprise Bond Retirement Fund.

** An estimate for 1990 was not available.

Source: Survey of Current Business, U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Econornic Analysis



STATE OF OHIO Table 5

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Ohio Turnpike Commission

Net
Revenue Current Fiscal Year's
Direct Available Debt Service Requirements
Fiscal Gross Operating ForlDebtt = ' —i==ar — b e e sl =
Year(a) Revenue Expenditures (b)  Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1981 $52,024 $25,705 $26,319 $6,337 $799 $7,136 3.69
1982 53,257 27,969 25,288 6,092 558 6,650 3.80
1983 69,580 30,884 38,696 4,836 359 5,195 7.45
1984 74,685 32,844 41,841 4,787 263 5,050 8.29
1985 79,423 35,656 43,767 4,811 259 5,070 8.63
1986 81,828 36,985 44,843 --- 409 409 109.64
1987 85,179 38,472 46,707 - 409 409 114.20
1988 86,980 40,548 46,432 - 409 409 113.53
1989 91,741 43,356 48,385 - 409 409 118.30
1990 93,446 47,549 45,897 wem 409 409 112.22

(a) Data for fiscal years 1981 through 1983 is presented on a non-GAAP, budgetary basis while data for fiscal years 1084
through 1990 is shown on a GAAP basis.
(b) Includes only those expenditures recorded in the Special Revenue Fund.

Economic Development Financing Division

Net
Revenue Current Fiscal Year's
Direct Available Debt Service Requirements
Fiscal Gross Operating ForlDebt 7z | = “al tdew b ke wesae e e o ioa
Year(c) Revenue Expenditures Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1981 $397,489 $233,988 $163,501 $ - $hh s $ - -
1982 391,811 262,166 129,645 - - - e
1983 379,817 239,921 139,896 - 7,459 7,459 18.76
1984 359,879 212,721 147,158 695 12,511 13,206 11.14
1985 359,518 253,525 105,993 1,510 16,561 18,071 5.87
1986 336,192 278,213 57,979 1,695 16,383 18,078 3.21
1987 361,907 307,095 54,812 1,900 16,184 18,084 3.03
1988 350,376 280,215 70,161 2,130 15,962 18,092 3.88
1989 369,305 301,125 68,180 2,390 15,712 18,102 3.77
1990 347,551 274,771 72,780 12,030 6,073 18,103 4.02

(c) Data for fiscal years 1981 through 1987 is presented ona non-GAAP, budgetary basis while data for fiscal years 1988
through 1990 is shown on a GAAP basis.
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STATE OF OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Table 5
(Continued)

State Parking Commission

Net

Revenue

Direct Available

Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt
Year(d) Revenue Expenses (e) Service

1981 $1,197 $1,621 $(424)
1982 1,253 629 624
1983 1,291 832 459
1984 1,347 789 558
1985 1,724 869 855
1986 1,866 1,290 576
1987 1,983 1,407 576
1988 2,104 888 1,216
1989 2,524 1,067 1,457
1990 2,540 936 1,604

Principal

$521
147
148
143
29
13

691
746

Current Fiscal Year's

Debt Service Requirements

Iinterest Total
$78 $599
74 221
64 212
62 205
58 87
57 70
57 57
60 60
42 733
24 770

Coverage

-0.71
2.82
217
2.72
9.83
8.23

10.11

20.27
1.99
2.08

(d) Data for fiscal years 1981 through 1987 is presented on a non-GAAP, budgetary basis while data for fiscal years 1988
through 1990 is shown on a GAAP basis.
(e) Excludes depreciation expense.

Uhio Building Authority

Net

Revenue

Direct Available

Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt
Year (f) Revenue Expenses Service

1981 $1,526 $5,507 $(3,981)
1982 6,224 5,604 620
1983 10,030 6,296 3,734
1984 22,675 8,393 14,282
1985 19,585 9,274 10,311
1986 23,858 9,555 14,303
1987 18,596 10,215 8,381
1988 32,731 11,922 20,809
1989 39,899 16,881 23,018
1990 25,879 19,426 6,453

Principal

$ e
15,547
49,028

732
60,264
1,462
1,543
1,653
1,761

Current Fiscal Year's

Debt Service Requirements

Interest Total

$ 73 §$ 73

—-e- 15,547
2,685 2,685
8,278 57,306
5,622 6,354
5,052 65,316
4,903 6,365
5,299 6,842
5,056 6,709
4,626 6,387

Coverage

-54.53
0.04
1.39
0.25
1.62
0.22
1.32
3.04
3.43
1.01

() Data for fiscal years 1981 through 1987 is presented on a non-GAAP, budgetary basis while data for fiscal years 1988
through 1990 is shown on a GAAP basis.



STATE OF OHIO Vable 6

PERSONAL INCOME
OHIO COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES
FOR THE LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Ohio's Total

Personal Per Capita Personal Income

Income Percent United
Calendar Year (in millions) Change Ohio States
1980 $ 105,035 + 8.6% $ 9,727 $ 9,950
1981 113,969 + 8.5% 10,552 10,949
1982 117,766 + 3.3% 10,928 11,481
1983 123,972 + 5.3% 11,521 12,098
1984 134,761 + 8.7% 12,512 13,114
1985 141,972 + 5.4% 13,176 13,896
1986 148,975 + 4.9% 13,821 14,597
1987 157,161 + 5.5% 14,529 15,423
1988 167,606 + 6.6% 15,427 16,513
1989 178,583 + 6.5% 16,373 17,596

Source: Survey of Current Business, U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
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STATE OF OHIO Table 8
POPULATION BY AGE GROUP

OHIO
Age Group 1970 Percent 1980 Percent
Under 5 years 921,030 8.7% 787,150 7.3%
5 through 19 years 3,198,880 30.0% 2,715,784 256.2%
20 through 44 years 3,348,132 31.4% 3,928,118 36.4%
45 through 64 years 2,186,281 20.5% 2,197,118 20.3%
65 years and over 997,694 9.4% 1,169.460 10.8%

10,652,017 100.0% 10,797,630 100.0%
Source: General Population Characteristics -- Ohio, 1980 Census of Population, U.S. Bureau of Census

(The most recent information available)
UNITED STATES
Age Group 1970 Percent 1980 Percent
Under 5 years 17,154,337 8.4% 16,348,254 7.2%
5 througn 19 years 59,816,063 29.4% 56,110,209 24.8%
20 through 44 years 64,366,255 31.7% 84,035,253 371%
45 through 64 years 41,809,769 20.6% 44,502,662 19.6%
65 years and over 20,065,502 9.9% 25,549,427 11.3%
100.0% 100.0%

203,211,926

226,545,805

Source: General Population Characteristics -- United States Summary, 1980 Census of Population, U.S. Bureau of Census

(The most recent information available)

OHIO'S TOTAL POPULATION AS A PERCENTAGE OF

U.S. TOTAL POPULATION

1970
Ohio U.S. Percent
10,652,017 203,211,926 5.2%

10,797,630

1980
Ohio u.s. Percent

226,545,805 4.8%
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STATE OF OHIO Table 9

AVERAGE MONTHLY UNEMPLOYMENT RATES
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS AND FIRST HALF OF CALENDAR 1990

Calendar Year Ohio United States
1980 8.4% 71%
1981 9.6% 7.6%
1982 12.5% 9.7%
1983 12.2% 9.6%
1984 9.4% 7.5%
1985 8.9% 7.2%
1986 8.1% 71%
1987 7.0% 6.2%
1988 6.0% 5.5%
1989 5.6% 2.3%
1990 (First Half) (a) 6.1% 3.4%

(a) Average subject to revision, not seasonally adjusted

Source: Ohio Bureau of Employment Services



STATE OF OHIO Table 10

List of Major Industrial Corporations That Maintain Headquarters in Ohio

American Greetings Corporation (Cleveland) Ohio Mattress Holding (Cleveland)

A. Schulman Incorporated (Akron) Owens-Coming Fiberglas Corporation (Toledo)

B. F. Goodrich Company (Akron) Owens-Illinois Incorporated (Toledo)
Banner Industries (Beechwood) Parker-Hannifin Corporation (Cleveland)
Chemed (Cincinnati) Penn Central Corporation (Cincinnati)

Cincinnati Milacron Incorporated (Cincinnati) Philips Industries Incorporated (Dayton)

Cooper Tire & Rubber (Findlay)
Dana Corporation (Toledo)

Eagel-Picher Industries Incorporated

Proctor & Gamble Company (Cincinnati)
Reliance Electric Company (Cleveland)

Reynolds & Reynolds Company (Dayton)

(Cincinnati)

Rubbermaid Incorporated (Wooster)
Eaton Corporation (Cleveland)

Sherwin-Williams Company (Cleveland)
Ferro Corporation (Cleveland)

Standard Products Company (Cleveland)
Figgie International (Willoughby)

Standard Register Company (Dayton)
Gencorp (Fairlawn)

Sudbury (Cleveland)
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company (Akron)

Timken Company (Canton)
Lincoln Electric Company (Cleveland)

Trinova Corporation (Maumee)
Lubrizol Corporation (Wickliffe)

TRW Incorporated (Cleveland)
M.A. Hanna Company (Cleveland)

Uniroyal Goodrich Tire Company (Akron)
Mead Corporation (Dayton)

United Brands Company (Cincinnati)
NACCO Industries (Cleveland)

Worthington Industries Incorporated (Columbus)
NCR Corporation (Dayton)

Source: The Fortune 500 Listing, Fortune Magazine, April 1990




STATE OF OHIO Cable 11

SALES OF RETAIL STORES
FOR THE LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

(amounts expressed in millions)

Retail Sales Per Capita
Calendar Ohio's Percent Retail Percent
Year Total Change Sales Change
1980 $ 44,670 4.4% $ 4,137 4.4%
1981 46,390 3.9% 4,295 3.8%
1982 47,175 1.7% 4,377 1.9%
1983 50,438 6.9% 4,687 7.1%
1984 55,055 9.2% 5,111 9.1%
1985 60,515 9.9% 5,616 9.9%
1986 62,745 3.7% 5,821 3.6%
1987 64,217 2.3% 5,937 2.0%
1988 66,751 3.9% 6,144 3.5%
1989 70,491 5.6% 6,463 5.2%

Source: ikevised Monthly Retail Sales and Inventories, U.S. Department of Commerce



STATE OF OHIO Table 12

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS AND DATA

STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT:

Number of Counties 88
Number of Incorporated Cities and Villages 943
Number of State Agencies 108
Number of State Employees 59,995
Number of State Representatives 99
Number of State Senators 33
TRANSPORTATION:

Number of Airports/Heliports 1,005
Number of Bridges 42,927
Miles of Railroad Track 6,140
Miles of Highway 113,435
PARKS AND RECREATION:

Number of State Parks 72
Area of State Parks and Natural Areas 221,648.4 Acres
Area of State Forest Lands and Preserves 178,147.9 Acres
EDUCATION:

Number of State-Assisted Higher Education Institutions 41
1989-90 Student Enroliment at State-Assisted Higher Education Institutions 514,662
Number of Public School Districts 612
Number of Joint Vocational School Districts 49
MISCELLANEOUS:

Date of Statehood March 1, 1803
State Motto With God, All Things are Possible
Total Land Acreage 26.4 Miltion
Total Farm Acreage 15Million

Sources: Ohio Department of Transportation, Financial and Statistical Report
Ohio Department of Natural Resources, Land Inventory
Ohio Board of Regents
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WE WOULD LIKE YOUR COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS ...

To increase the usefulness of the State of Ohio's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), we would like to
provide our financial statement users with the opportunity to express their opinions and ideas by completing and
mailing the following questionnaire to the address shown below.

STATE OF OHIO, OFFICE OF BUDGET AND MANAGEMENT
30 EAST BROAD STREET, 34TH FLOOR
COLUMBUS, OHIO 43266-0411
ATTENTION: FINANCIAL REPORTING SECTION

Furthermore, the Office of Budget and Management offers comparative financial information for fiscal years 1989
and 1990 at the combined statement level in LOTUS 1-2-3 format for a nominal fee of $3 per diskette. If you are
interested in purchasing this supplementary financial information on diskette, please check the appropriate box at the
end of the questionnaire and enclose your payment. Please make checks payable tothe STATE OF OHIO.

QUESTIONNAIRE

1. What additional financial, economic, and demographic information would you find helpful for inclusion in graphic
presentations, introductory materials, or the "Statistical Section" of the State’s CAFR? Please specify below.

2.Based on the State's 1990 CAFR, what other comments or suggestions do you have? Please specify below.

3.Do you wish to continue to receive the State’s CAFR? Please check: L Jves [ No
4. Please complete the following:

Name

Organization/Company,

Title

Street/P.O.Box

City State ZipCode

Telephone

{0 Yes. Please send me the financial information on a (please indicate one) 1O 3 1/2 inch diskette or O 5 1/4 inch
floppy to the address shown above. Enclosed is $
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